# ADDENDUM AGREEMENT BETWEEN ALACHUA COUNTY AND NATURAL ELEMENTS PAINTING & REPAIR, LLC FOR ANNUAL PAINTING AND PRESSURE WASHING, NO. 14263

This Agreement (referred as an "Addendum" or "Agreement") is made by and between Alachua County, Florida, a political subdivision and charter county of the State of Florida, by and through its Board of County Commissioners (the "County") and NATURAL ELEMENTS PAINTING & REPAIR, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company authorized to do business in the State of Florida ("Contractor" or "Vendor"), who are collectively referred to as the "Parties".

#### WITNESSETH:

**WHEREAS**, the County desires to contract with a vendor to provide painting and pressure washing services, as-needed and on-call for Alachua County facilities and buildings; and

**WHEREAS**, the Alachua County Procurement Code defines 'piggyback' as a form of intergovernmental cooperative purchasing where an entity extends the pricing and terms of a contract entered into by another entity, with some negotiation to terms not altering the scope; and

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to Section 22.3-302(12) of the Alachua County Procurement Code, the procurement of the goods and services need not be procured through a competitive procurement process when supplies or services are under contract with federal, state or municipal or any other governmental agency or political subdivision provided the vendor extends the same terms and conditions of the contract to the County; and

**WHEREAS**, the Contractor currently provides Campus Painting and Pressure Washing services to the University of Florida following a competitive procurement process completed by the University (Invitation to Bid, FY24-ITB-017), a copy of which incorporated herein and attached hereto as **Exhibit 1** (the "UF Agreement"); and

**WHEREAS**, such solicitation, and resulting UF Agreement, allows for purchases to be made by other governmental agencies within the State of Florida, provided purchases as governed by the same terms and conditions as the solicitation; and

**WHEREAS**, the Contractor is willing and agrees to provide services for Annual Painting and Pressure Washing to the County, and agrees to extend to the County the same pricing, terms and conditions of the UF Agreement; and

**WHEREAS**, the Parties agree to the terms and conditions of the UF Agreement, except as modified herein.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1. **Recitals**. The recitals set forth above are correct and are incorporated into this Addendum Agreement.
- 2. Scope of Services. Pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to provide the County with all materials, supplies, equipment, supervision and labor necessary for painting exterior and interior of County buildings and pressure washing, power washing and soft washing sidewalks, roofs and exterior of County owned or occupied buildings, as-needed at the request of the County ("Services"). Painting substrates include but are not limited to steel, plaster, metal, brick, aluminum, wood, gypsum board, galvanized metal, concrete, fiberglass, EFIS, or cinder block. Interior painting may include but is not limited to offices, corridors, mechanical/electrical rooms, animal rooms and support areas, doors, door frames and trim. Included in the overall Services are those commonly encountered in the Painting and Pressure Washing trade, and other Paining and Pressure Washing related services referenced in the UF Agreement, including the painting and pressure/power washing non-technical specifications, attached

#### hereto as **Exhibit 1** (FY24-ITB-017).

The Parties agree to be bound by the Terms and Conditions and Pricing of the UF Agreement, attached hereto, except as modified in this Paragraph 4 of this Addendum below. In the event of conflict between the provisions in Paragraph 4 below and the terms and conditions of the UF Agreement, the provisions of this Addendum Agreement will prevail. Failure to physically attach in Exhibit 1 the UF Agreement or its attachments, general terms, and appendixes, whether in part or in whole, shall not invalidate this Addendum, but it shall be construed as if the particular document, provision or part was in fact attached. In the event of conflict, the documents related to the Services will be read in the following order of precedence: (a) this Addendum Agreement, (b) the UF Agreement, (c) any Work Order(s) issued by the County.

- 3. <u>Term.</u> This Agreement is effective upon execution by both Parties ("effective date") and continues through the term of the UF Agreement (November 30, 2024), as may be renewed. No amendment of this Agreement shall exceed the term of the UF Agreement and its renewal periods.
- 4. <u>Addendum</u>. The Parties agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of the UF Agreement, with respect to the County's purchase of or request for Services from the Contractor during the term of this Addendum, as applicable, except for as modified or added below:
  - A. <u>References</u>. For the purposes of this Agreement, references in the UF Agreement to the "Owner" or "University of Florida" or "University" or "UF" any of its divisions, departments, agencies or employees will be read to reference to Alachua County Florida or its divisions, departments, offices, or employees. The use of the term Site in the UF Agreement will refer to facilities, buildings and property owned or utilized by Alachua County. References in or attachments to the UF Agreement regarding the provisions of UF Design & Construction Standards and the provisions for Inspections and Test, Security, Game Weekends, Dig Permits Signage, Waste Reporting, Sustainability and UF Building Permits that may be referenced in the UF Agreement terms and conditions, are not applicable to this Agreement for Services between the Contractor and the County.
  - B. <u>Authorization for Services</u>. The County and Contractor agree the order of events for Services by the Contractor for the County will be as follows:
    - 1) The County will draft and provide project specifications and/or scope of the work for each need(s) of the County for the Services.
    - 2) When needed, the requesting County's project manager will request all Contractors on-call for painting and pressure washing services under contract with the County to provide the County's Facilities Management with a written quote for the Services for the individual identified project. If the County finds necessary, the County may schedule a pre-construction or site visit for the on-call contractors. The quote will include labor and material breakdown, including but not limited to square footage and price per square foot, permitting costs (if required), detailed price list of materials, cost of rental equipment (if required), markup for materials and rental equipment, and completion date.
    - 3) Authorization for performance of the Services by the Contractor for the identified project will occur when the County issues a Work Order or purchase order to Contractor for the project and it is executed by County and signed by Contractor. Each Order will state a project name, state the dates for commencement and completion of the Services, and state the quote based upon the pricing of this Agreement for the specific Services. A sample Work Order and Amendment to Work Order are attached as **Exhibit 2** and **Exhibit 2A**. If the scope of the Services requires or if directed by the County, the project will be bonded, and the Contractor shall furnish payment and performance bond(s) on forms acceptable to the County and in compliance with Florida law covering the full and faithful performance of the project and obligations arising thereunder.

- 4) When directed by the County's project manager, the Contractor, its personnel, subcontractors or representatives will comply with background checks, trainings, dress codes, identification requirements, or other measures required by the County or the Sherriff in order to have access to some secure areas of County facilities.
- 5) When the Services rendered for the County have been furnished and completed, the County will make a final inspection. Substantial Completion of the Services for the individual project, will same as those in the UF Agreement's general terms and conditions. All items that are identified and require correction, are the obligations of the Contractor.
- 6) The County makes no covenant or promise as to the amount or number of Services or projects to be requested of Contractor under this Addendum, or that Contractor will perform any Services or projects for the County during the term of this Addendum. The Parties acknowledge that there is nothing in this Addendum that precludes County from retaining services of other contractors, professionals, and consultants for similar or same Services or from independently performing the Services on its own.

# C. Pricing and Invoicing Procedures.

- Pricing for the Services timely and completed by the Contractor for the County the amount to be paid to Contractor for the Services will not exceed \$250,000.00 annually ("NTE amount"). For the purpose of this Agreement annually shall be construed as the County's Fiscal Year, October 1-September 30. Payment will be in accordance with the prices listed in the UF Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as **Exhibit 3** and incorporated herein. If the scope of the Services requires or if directed by the County, the project will be bonded, and the Contractor shall furnish payment and performance bond(s) on forms acceptable to Alachua County, and in compliance with Florida law covering the full and faithful performance of the project and obligations arising thereunder.
- 2) As a condition precedent for any payment, Contractor must submit invoices to the County, at the address provided by the County, requesting payment for Services properly rendered and expenses due during the preceding 30 days, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the County. Contractor's invoice must describe the Services rendered, the date performed [and time expended, if billed by hour, and the person(s) rendering such Services. Contractor's invoice shall be accompanied by documentation or data in support of expenses, as the County may require. The invoice shall additionally reflect the allocations as provided and shall state the percentage of completion as to each such allocation. Each invoice shall constitute the Contractor's representation to the County that the Services indicated have reached the level stated, have served a public purpose, have been properly and timely performed, that the expenses included in the invoice have been reasonably incurred in accordance with this Agreement, that all obligations of Contractor covered by prior invoices have been paid in full, and that the amount requested is currently due and owing. Submission of the Contractor's invoice for final payment shall further constitute the Contractor's representation to the County that, upon receipt by the Contractor of the amount invoiced, all obligations of the Contractor to others, including its subcontractors, will be paid in full. Contractor shall submit invoices to the County at the address listed in the notice section below. The County shall not be obligated to make payment to the Contractor for amounts that are the subject of a good faith dispute or a claim brought pursuant to §255.05, Florida Statutes.
- The County may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of the Contractor to the extent that such books and records relate to the performance of this Agreement with and the Services to the County. Such books and records shall be maintained by the Contractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment under this Agreement and by the subcontractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment under the subcontract, unless a shorter period is otherwise authorized in writing. Contractor agrees to provide such assistance as may be necessary to facilitate the

- review or audit by the County to ensure compliance with applicable accounting and financial standards.
- The County's performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon a specific annual appropriation by the Alachua County Board of County Commissioners ("Board"). The Parties hereto understand that this Agreement is not a commitment of future appropriations. Continuation of this Agreement beyond the term or the end of any County fiscal year shall be subject to both the appropriation and the availability of funds in accordance with Chapter 129, Florida Statutes; and that the failure of the Board to do so shall not constitute a breach or default of this Addendum.
- D. <u>Insurance</u>: During the term, Contractor will procure and maintain insurance of the types and in the minimum amounts detailed in **Exhibit "4"** attached hereto and incorporated herein. A copy of a current Certificate of Insurance (COI) showing coverage of the type and in the amounts required is attached hereto as **Exhibit 4-A"**.
- E. <u>County Property</u>: Contractor agrees to promptly, without delay, notify the County either in phone, email, or orally (1) of any hazardous, dangerous, unsafe, or destructive conditions, trespassers, vandalism or damages that the Contractor or its employees, subcontractors, or agents notices or is made aware of on County property, including inside any County owned or used facility, and (2) if an employee or agent of the Contractor suffers injury or damage to its/his/her person or property while on Alachua County's property, whether owned or leased.
- F. Prevailing Wage: If, as determined by County, the Services to be performed by Contractor are 'Covered Services', as defined under the Alachua County Government Minimum Wage Ordinance ("Wage Ordinance"), then during the term of this Agreement and any renewals, Contractor shall pay its 'Covered Employees', as defined in the Wage Ordinance, no less than the Alachua County Government Minimum Wage ("Minimum Wage"), as may be amended by the County. Contractor will require the same of its subcontractors and subconsultants who provide the Services. If applicable to the Services, Contractor will certify this understanding, obligation, and commitment to County through a certification and Contractor will (a) post a copy of the Minimum Wage Rate in a prominent place of its principal place of business where it is easily seen by Covered Employees; (b) supply a copy to any Covered Employee upon request; (c) make any person submitting a bid for a subcontract for Covered Services aware of these requirements; and (d) include the necessary provisions in subcontracts to ensure compliance. The County shall not be deemed a necessary, or indispensable, party in any litigation between Contractor and subcontractor. At this time of execution of this Agreement, the prevailing Minimum Wage is as follows, which is subject to change during the term of this Agreement, and will be updated, and be applicable, without the necessary of amendment to this Agreement:

\$17.00 per hour with qualifying health benefits amounting to at least \$2.00 per hour/\$19.00 per hour without health benefits

If applicable to the Services under this Agreement and to Contractor, the failure to comply with the provisions of the Wage Ordinance will be deemed a breach this Agreement and County is authorized to withhold payment of funds in accordance with Alachua County Code and Chapter 218, Florida Statutes.

G. Indemnification: THE CONTRACTOR HEREBY WAIVES AND RELEASES, AND AGREES TO PROTECT, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS ALACHUA COUNTY AND ITS BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, AND ATTORNEYS (COLLECTIVELY "ALACHUA COUNTY") FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, PENALTIES, EXPENSES, AND CAUSES OF ACTION OF ANY AND EVERY DESCRIPTION, AND DAMAGES, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS, BROUGHT AGAINST ALACHUA COUNTY RESULTING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INCIDENT OR

OCCURRENCE ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH AN ACT, ERROR OR OMISSION OF CONTRACTOR OR CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, AGENTS, ASSIGNS OR SUBCONTRACTORS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICES SET FORTH IN THIS ADDENDUM AGREEMENT, INCLUDING THE ATTACHED EXHIBITS, AND ANY AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT, AND FROM CONTRACTOR'S ENTRY ONTO PROPERTY OWNED BY ALACHUA COUNTY AND ANY AND ALL IMPROVEMENTS THEREON.

This obligation shall in no way be limited in any nature by any limitation on the amount or type of Contractor's insurance coverage. In the event the County is alleged to be liable on account of alleged acts or omissions, or both, of Contractor or Contractor's employees, representatives or agents, then Contractor will investigate, respond to and provide a defense for any allegations and claims, at Contractor's sole costs and expense. Furthermore, Contractor will pay all costs, fees and other expenses of any defense, including but not limited to, all attorneys' fees, court costs and expert witness fees and expenses. Contractor and County will jointly cooperate with each other in the event of any litigation, including any request for documentation. This indemnification provision will survive the termination of this Agreement. Nothing contained herein shall constitute a waiver by the County of sovereign immunity or the provisions or limitation of liability of §768.28, Florida Statutes, as may be amended.

- H. <u>Public Records:</u> In accordance with §119.0701, Florida Statutes, Contractor, *when acting on behalf of the County,* shall, as required by Florida law:
  - 1) Keep and maintain public records required by the County to perform the Services.
  - 2) Upon request from the County's custodian of public records, provide the County with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Florida law or as otherwise provided by law.
  - 3) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the term of this Agreement and following completion of the Agreement if Contractor does not transfer the records to the County.
  - 4) Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the County all public records in possession of Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the County to perform the Services. If Contractor transfers all public records to the County upon completion of the Agreement, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the County, upon request from the County's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the County's information technology systems.

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE COUNTY'S PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT publicrecordsrequest@alachuacounty.us OR (352) 384-3132 OR 12 SE 1<sup>ST</sup> STREET, GAINESVILLE, FL 32601.

If Contractor fails to comply with this section, Contractor will be deemed in default under this Agreement. The County may enforce as set forth in §119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor who fails to provide the public records in response to a request within a reasonable time may be subject

to penalties imposed under §119.10, Florida Statute, and costs of enforcement, including fees, under §119.0701 and §119.12, Florida Statutes.

The County and the Contractor will take reasonable measures to protect, secure and maintain any data held by Contractor in an electronic form that is or contains proprietary, exempt, confidential, personal, or protected information, as defined by Florida or federal law, related to or in connection with performance of the Services. If Contractor suspects or becomes aware of a security breach or unauthorized access to such data by a third party, Contractor shall immediately notify the County in writing and will work, at Contractor's expense, to prevent or stop the data breach.

#### 5. Termination.

- A. This Addendum may be terminated by the County due to (a) the failure of the Contractor to provide the Services within time specified, or (b) failure of the Contractor to carry out any obligation, term, or condition of this Addendum, or (c) the Contractor violates any of the covenants, agreements, terms or stipulations of this Addendum. The County Manager and his/her designee is authorized to provide notice of default on behalf of County. Failure to adequately address all issues of concern may result in termination. Termination shall be effective by delivery of notice to the Contractor specifying the date of termination.
- B. If funds to finance the Services become unavailable, as determined by the County, County may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Contractor. County Manager and his/her designee is authorized to provide notice of termination on behalf of the County. The effective date of termination of this Agreement will be the date specified in the notice of termination or, if date specified in the notice, then the effective date of termination will be the date that the notice of termination is received by the Contractor.
- 6. <u>Amendment and Assignment</u>. This Agreement may not be modified or amended without the written agreement by the County and the Contractor. This Agreement shall not be assigned without the written consent of the County.
- 7. Notice. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice from either Party to the other Party must be in writing and delivered by hand delivery with receipt or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses below. All notices will be deemed delivered five (5) business days after mailing. Each Party may change its mailing address by giving the other Party, written notice of election to change the address.

#### To Contractor:

Natural Elements Painting & Repair Attn: John Malanchuk 13900 Tech City Circle, Suite 404 Alachua, FL 32615 352-359-1051 john@neprfl.com

#### To County:

Facilities Management 915 SE 5<sup>th</sup> Street Gainesville, Florida, 32601 (352) 374-5286 FacFiscal@alachuacounty.us

cc: With a copy electronically sent to:

Alachua County Procurement, Attn: Contracts <a href="mailto:acpur@alachuacounty.us">acpur@alachuacounty.us</a>

Clerk of Court, Attn Finance & Accounting <a href="mailto:dmw@alachuaclerk.org">dmw@alachuaclerk.org</a>

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the Parties have caused this Addendum Agreement to be executed on the respective dates under each signature: Alachua County, Florida, through its Chair of the Board of County Commissioners who is authorized to sign, and by Contractor, through its duly authorized representative.

CONTIBE AS GOTA OPR	
By	
TA4F2C000B104AC	
Print: JOHN MALANCHUK	
President Title:	
Date:	

IF THE CONTRACTOR IS NOT A NATURAL PERSON, PLEASE PROVIDE A CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY AND AUTHORITY, OR A CORPORATE RESOLUTION, LISTING THOSE AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE CONTRACTS ON BEHALF OF YOUR ORGANIZATION. IF ARE A NATURAL PERSON, THEN YOUR SIGNATURE MUST BE NOTARIZED.

	ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA
	By:
	Mary C Alford, Chair
	<b>Board of County Commissioners</b>
	Date:
ATTEST	Approved as to form:
J.K. "Jess" Irby, Esq., Clerk (SEAL)	Alachua County Attorney's Office

# Exhibit 1 – UF Agreement

{Copy attached and incorporated hereinFY24-ITB-017 UF Agreement with Natural Elements Painting and Repair, for Campus Painting and Pressure Washing Services}



# Office of the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Procurement Services https://procurement.ufl.edu/

971 Elmore Drive PO Box 115250 Gainesville, FL 32611-5250 (352) 392-1331 Fax 352-392-8837

November 28, 2023

Natural Elements Painting & Repair John Malanchuk 13900 Tech City Circle, Suite 404 Alachua, FL 32615 john@neprfl.com

Dear John,

Natural Elements Painting & Repair has been awarded FY24-ITB-017 Campus Painting and Pressure Washing Services. The initial contract term is December 1, 2023, through November 30, 2024, with the option to renew the contract for three (3) additional one (1) year periods upon mutual acceptance by both parties.

Your Contract will consist of the Purchase Order for an individual project issued by UF Procurement Services and will be governed by UF's PO Terms and Conditions and all terms and conditions, non-technical specifications, forms, guides, standards, and policies contained and referenced in the Bid Documents. Pricing for any projects quoted under this contract shall not exceed the pricing submitted with your bid.

Please indicate your acceptance by signing below and returning to me at kolitsk@ufl.edu no later than December 1, 2023.

Karen Olitsky Procurement Manager

Sincerely,

President

Signature

Title

John Malanchuk

Printed Name

Date



# **Campus Painting and Pressure Washing Services (Reissued)**

The purpose of this contract is to simplify and expedite the execution of painting and pressure washing services at the UF Gainesville Campus, St. Augustine properties, and IFAS facilities.

 Open
 10/5/2023 3:00 PM EDT
 Type
 Invitation To Bid

 Close
 11/1/2023 3:00 PM EDT
 Number
 FY24 -ITB-017

Currency US Dollar

#### **Contacts**

#### Karen Olitsky

kolitsk@ufl.edu

Phone +1 352-294-1163

#### **Commodity Codes**

None Added

# **Description**

#### **SCOPE OF WORK**

The University of Florida is seeking vendors to provide all materials, supplies, equipment, supervision and labor necessary for painting exterior and interior of University of Florida (UF) buildings and pressure washing, power washing and soft washing sidewalks, roofs and exterior of UF buildings. Painting substrates include but are not limited to steel, plaster, metal, brick, aluminum, wood, gypsum board, galvanized metal, concrete, fiberglass, EFIS, or cinder block. Interior painting may include but is not limited to classrooms, offices, corridors, mechanical/electrical rooms, animal rooms and support areas, doors, door frames and trim. The intent is to establish a pool of vendors on an indefinite quantity contract to be utilized on an "as needed per job" basis.

#### General

- 1. Onsite storage of materials and equipment may or may not be available, depending on the project location. This information will be made available to the vendor prior to the vendor quoting the project.
- 2. Vendor shall make every effort to keep any interruptions of normal University operations to an absolute minimum; this shall be coordinated with appropriate University personnel. Vendor shall provide barricades and signs to direct traffic away or around work area as required.
- 3. The vendor is responsible for the provision of adequate and proper safety precautions for both vendor staff and all persons in or around the work area.
- 4. Any changes in work schedule must be coordinated with appropriate University staff.

#### Quotes

- 1. The University will provide project specifications and/or scope of work for each individual project.
- 2. Vendor will provide written quote for each project. The quote will include a labor and material breakdown, including but not limited to square footage and price per square foot, permitting cost (if required), detailed price list of materials, cost of rental equipment (if required), markup for materials and rental equipment, and completion date. It will be the vendor's responsibility to ensure they have all information to prepare accurate estimates.
  - Pricing breakdown must appear on the quote <u>and</u> on invoices submitted for work completed.
  - Vendor will receive a purchase order for each individual project.
  - Prior to payment of the final invoice, all work and corrections will be inspected and accepted by an authorized representative of the University.

#### **Equipment/Labor/Materials**

- 1. For preparation of substrates and general painting requirements reference "Division 9 Finishes" in UF Design & Construction Standards: <a href="https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/090000-rev-092122-final.pdf">https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/090000-rev-092122-final.pdf</a>
- 2. Vendor must furnish all labor, equipment and tools necessary for general painting, including minor repair of walls of University buildings. Vendor may be required to supply paint for some jobs, but in other cases the University will supply paint for the job. The University will specify the exact type and color of paint, and whether the paint will be University or vendor provided, prior to the vendor quoting the project.
- 3. Vendor may be asked to provide samples of each color and finish selection and to demonstrate aesthetic effects and set quality standards for materials and execution.
- 4. Vendor may be asked to provide maintenance materials at the end of a project such as five (5) one (1)-gallon cans of trim paint. This will be communicated to the vendor prior to the vendor quoting the project.
- 5. Pressure washing, power washing and soft washing may include removing debris and foreign materials from surface of area to be cleaned.
- 6. Detergents, degreasers or other chemicals (if any) used for cleaning will be approved by the appropriate UF personnel. Environmentally friendly ("green") products are preferred, if cost effective.
- 7. Vendor may be asked to provide, with their quote, MSDS Sheets for materials used in a particular project.
- 8. Lead Based Paint: Vendor must comply with the Environmental Protection Agency's 2008 Lead-Based Paint

  Repoyation, Repair and Painting (RRP) Rule (as amended in 2010 and 2011), which aims to protect the public

- from lead-based paint hazards associated with renovation, repair and painting activities. These activities can create hazardous lead dust when surfaces with lead paint, even from many decades ago, are disturbed. The rule requires workers to be certified and trained in the use of lead-safe work practices, and requires renovation, repair, and painting firms to be EPA-certified. These requirements became fully effective April 22, 2010. More information can be found at <a href="https://www.epa.gov/lead/lead-renovation-repair-and-painting-program-rules">https://www.epa.gov/lead/lead-renovation-repair-and-painting-program-rules</a>.
- 9. The Contractor is responsible for the finish of the work. Should any surface be found unsuitable to produce an even paint or sealant finish, the University representative shall be notified in writing and no material shall be applied until the unsuitable surfaces have been made satisfactory according to University requirements. Beginning coating application constitutes vendor's acceptance of substrates and conditions.

#### **Rental Equipment**

- 1. In the event vendor must rent equipment for a specific project, the cost to the University will be calculated based on the vendor's cost from the rental facility plus vendor's mark-up.
- 2. Written approval from a University representative is required prior to the use of rental equipment.
- 3. The vendor's quotes and invoices will clearly show the description of rental equipment used, number of hours or days of active use, cost, and vendor's mark-up. A copy of the vendor's rental equipment invoice from the rental facility will be submitted as back-up with the vendor's quote and invoice.

#### **SCHEDULE OF EVENTS**

ITB Release: 10/5/2023

Non-mandatory Virtual Pre-bid Meeting: 10/12/2023 at 2:00 PM

Contractor Questions Due: 10/19/2023

ITB Closes (Bids Due): 11/1/2023 at 3:00 PM

Bid contents will not be reviewed at the bid opening. Bid receipt will only be acknowledged. The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all bids, and to waive irregularities in the bids and in the procedure.

Required to View Event

Prerequisites

Required to Enter Bid

There are no Prerequisites added to this event.

# **Buyer Attachments**

- 1. <u>Electronic Submission Instructions.docx</u>
- 2. Painting Pressure Washing Non-Tech Specs 10.5.pdf

Questions	★ Required Qu	estions
Group 1:	General	
Instructions:		
1.1	Contractor certifies that this bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm or person submitting a bid for the same materials, supplies, or equipment and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.	*
1.2	Contractor agrees to abide by all terms and conditions contained in the Bid Documents and I certify that I am authorized to sign this bid for the Contractor and that the Contractor is in compliance with all the requirements of the Invitation to Bid, including but not limited to, certification requirements.	*
1.3	Provide Contractor's primary contact's name, phone and email address.	*
1.4	List of service areas (cities and/or counties) in Florida.	*
Group 2:	Qualifications	
Instructions:		
2.1	Evidence that bidder is licensed by the appropriate government agency.	
2.2	Proof of Insurance. General Liability at least \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence with UF named additional insured. Automobile liability at least \$500,000 per occurrence with UF named additional insured. Worker's Compensation Chapter 440, Florida Statutes.	*
2.3	References: List of projects/jobs of similar size and/or complexity which have been completed satisfactorily over the last three (3) years. Include location, date of completion, names of contract, and names, addresses and contact information (phone and email) of owners.	*

Product Line Items   ★ Product Line Items						
1	Painting Regular Time Hourly Rates					
	#	Item Name, Commodity Code, Description	Allow Alternates	Qty.	UOM	Requested Delivery
	P1	Project Manager/Supervisor (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
	P2	Painter (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
	Р3	Painter's Helper (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
2	Pain	ting Nights/Weekends Hourly Rates				
	#	Item Name, Commodity Code, Description	Allow Alternates	Qty.	UOM	Requested Delivery
	P1	Project Manager/Supervisor (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	
	P2	Painter (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	
	P3	Painter's Helper (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	
3	Pres	sure/Power Washing Regular Time Hourly R	ates			
	#	Item Name, Commodity Code, Description	Allow Alternates	Qty.	UOM	Requested Delivery
	P1	Project Manager/Supervisor (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
	P2	Pressure/Power Washing Technician (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
	P3	Pressure/Power Washing Helper (Regular Time)		1	HR - Hour	
4	Pres	sure/Power Washing Nights/Weekends Hour	ly Rates			
	#	Item Name, Commodity Code, Description	Allow Alternates	Qty.	UOM	Requested Delivery
	P1	Project Manager/Supervisor (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	
	P2	Pressure/Power Washing Technician (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	
	P3	Pressure/Power Washing Helper (Nights/Weekends)		1	HR - Hour	

Service Line Items ★ Service Line Items

There are no Items added to this event.



# **GENERAL TERMS and CONDITIONS**

for Construction Management At-Risk and Design-Bid-Build Projects

Revised May 2017

Business Affairs
Planning Design & Construction
www.facilities.ufl.edu

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ARTICL	LE 1 – DEFINITIONS	7
ARTICI	LE 2 – CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS	9
2.1	Quantity and Format of Documents	9
2.2	Minimum Requirements	9
2.3	Owner Disclaimer of Warranty	9
2.4	Conflicts in Documents	9
2.5	Contract Changes	9
ARTICI	LE 3 – BUILDER'S REVIEWS AND EVALUATIONS	10
3.1	Sufficiency of Construction Documents	10
3.2	Sufficiency of Site	10
ARTICL	LE 4 – BUILDER'S DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES	11
4.1	Performance Of Work	11
4.2	Compliance With Laws	12
4.3	Safety	12
4.4	On Site Records	12
4.5	Bribes and Kick-Backs	12
4.6	Quality Control And Testing	13
4.7	Incident Reporting	13
4.8	Hazardous Substances	13
4.9	Owner's Use Of and Access To The Site	13
4.10	Utilities	14
	LE 5 – BUILDER'S PERSONNEL, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND SITE	14
5.1	Project Staffing	
5.2	Subcontractor / Supplier Contracts	
5.3	Resolution of Trade Disputes	15
ARTICL	LE 6 – GOODS, PRODUCTS, AND MATERIALS	
6.1	Quality Of Materials	
6.2	Installation And Use Of Materials	16
6.3	Unsuitable Materials	16
6.4	Substitutions	16
6.5	Construction Manager Responsibility	16
6.6	Security For The Project	17

ARTICL	LE 7 – DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION	17
7.1	Information from Owner	17
7.2	Resolution of Questions	17
7.3	Processing of Documents	17
7.4	Sufficiency of Owner Information	17
ARTICL	E 8 – SUBMITTALS	18
8.1	Submittal Schedule	18
8.2	Processing of Submittals	18
8.3	Record Documents	18
	LE 9 – BUILDER'S INSPECTION AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE OR PLETE WORK	18
9.1	Rejection and Correction of Work In Progress	18
9.2	Covered or Concealed Work	19
	LE 10 – CHANGE ORDERS, CHANGES TO THE WORK, AND CHANGED TIONS	19
10.1	Change Order Proposals and Requests	19
10.2	Owner-Directed Changes	20
10.3	Professional-Directed Changes	20
10.4	Administration of Changes	20
10.5	Compensation for Changes	20
10.6	Concealed and Unforeseen Conditions	20
10.7	Performance of Changes	21
10.8	Disputes Regarding Changes	21
10.9	Necessity for Signature Approval	21
ARTICL	LE 11 – OWNER'S CONSULTANT(S) AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION	22
11.1	Owner's Designated Professional Representative	22
11.2	Professional Site Visits	22
11.3	Professional Rejection of Work	22
11.4	Professional Evaluations	22
11.5	Professional Submittal Activities	22
11.6	Professional Interpretations	23
11.7	Professional Pay Application Activities	23
11.8	Professional Relationship to Builder	23
11.9	Commissioning Consultant	23

ARTICL	E 12 – SUBSTANTIAL AND FINAL COMPLETION	23
12.1	Substantial Completion	23
12.2	Final Completion	25
ARTICL	E 13 – BUILDER'S WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES	26
13.1	One-Year Warranty	26
13.2	Post-Completion Commissioning Activities	27
13.3	Express Warranties and Guarantees – Builder	27
13.4	Express Warranties and Guarantees – Subcontractors and Suppliers	27
13.5	Non-Exclusivity and Survival	27
13.6	Non-Limitation	28
13.7	Commencement of Obligations	28
ARTICL	E 14 – OWNER'S DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES	28
14.1	Timely Compensation of Builder	28
14.2	Owner Review of Documents	28
14.3	Status of Owner	28
ARTICL	E 15 – BUILDER'S COMPENSATION	
15.1	Schedule of Values	
15.2	Unit Prices	
15.3	Invoicing Procedures	
15.4	Payment Procedures	
15.5	Owner's Right to Refuse Payment	
15.6	Builder's Right to Refuse Performance for Non-Payment	31
15.7	Correction of Past Payments	31
15.8	Invoice Warranties and Guarantees	31
15.9	Builder's Signature	31
15.10	Taxes and Owner Direct Purchase Program	31
15.11	Compensation of Builder's Subcontractors and Suppliers	32
15.12	Retainage	32
15.13	Final Payment	33
ARTICL	E 16 – SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS	33
16.1	Construction Schedule	33
16.2	Delay in Performance	34
16.3	Early Completion	34

16.4	Document Review	35
ARTICL	E 17 – TIME OF PERFORMANCE	35
17.1	Time of the Essence	35
17.2	Modifications of Time for Performance	35
17.3	Compensable Delay	36
17.4	Excusable Delay	36
17.5	Critical Delay	36
ARTICL	E 18 – PROPRIETARY DOCUMENTS AND CONFIDENTIALITY	36
18.1	Nature and Use of Information	36
18.2	Ownership of Information	36
18.3	Disclosure of Information	37
18.4	Instructions to Employees	37
18.5	Non-Publication	37
ARTICL	E 19 – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	37
19.1	Basic Insurance Requirements	37
19.2	Certificates of Insurance	39
19.3	Effect of Insurance	40
19.4	Waiver of Subrogation	40
ARTICL	E 20 – GENERAL BOND REQUIREMENTS	
20.1	General Bond Requirements	
20.2	Delivery of Bonds	40
20.3	Requests for Copies of Bonds	40
ARTICL	E 21 – OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK	40
21.1	Cease and Desist Order	40
ARTICL	E 22 – TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION	
22.1	Termination for Cause by Owner	
22.2	Termination for Cause by Builder	42
22.3	Termination or Suspension for Convenience	
22.4	Builder's Compensation When Builder Terminates for Cause or Owner Terminates	
	enience	
22.5	Builder's Compensation When Owner Terminates for Cause	
22.6	Limitation on Termination Compensation	
22.7	Builder's Responsibility upon Termination	
22.8	Lack of Duty to Terminate	44

22.9	Limitation on Termination Claim	44
ARTICL	E 23 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION	44
23.1	Mutual Discussion	44
23.2	Facilitative Mediation	44
23.3	Conflicting Dispute Resolution Provisions	45
23.4	Arbitration Preclusion	45
23.5	Performance during Dispute Resolution	45
23.6	Litigation/Administrative Action	46
ARTICL	E 24 – DAMAGES AND REMEDIES	46
24.1	Builder's Repair	46
24.2	Reimbursement	46
24.3	General Indemnity	46
24.4	Intellectual Property Indemnity	46
24.5	Non-Exclusivity of Owner's Remedies	46
24.6	Waiver of Damages	47
ARTICL	E 25 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	47
25.1	Integration	47
25.2	Severability	47
25.3	Waiver	47
25.4	Strict Compliance	47
25.5	Third-Party Beneficiaries	47
25.6	Assignment of Anti-Trust Claims	47
25.7	Drug Free and Tobacco-Free Workplace	47
25.8	Survival	48
25.9	Independent Contractor	48
25.10	Public Records	48
25.11	Governing Law and Venue	48
25.12	Sovereign Immunity	48

#### **ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS**

When one of the following capitalized words, terms, or phrases is used in the Contract for Construction, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined below, second according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, and third according to its common and customary usage.

**Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ)**: That person or entity who has the delegated authority to determine, mandate, and enforce building code requirements established by jurisdictional governing bodies. For University of Florida projects, the University's Division of Environmental Health & Safety is normally the primary AHJ.

**BIM Execution Plan:** A detailed and project-specific guide for the development, sharing, use, and finalization of BIM models and model-related documents and information.

**Building Information Modeling (BIM):** A process involving the generation and management of digital representations of physical and functional characteristics of a facility through the use of three–dimensional, intelligent design information. The resulting building information models become shared knowledge resources to support decision-making about a facility from the earliest conceptual stages, through design, construction, and the facility's operational life.

**Builder:** An entity, including but not limited to a general contractor, a trade contractor or a construction manager, engaged directly by the Owner pursuant to a Contract for Construction.

**Certificate of Substantial Completion:** Document declaring the Work Substantially Complete and suitable for occupancy or beneficial use by the Owner.

**Commissioning:** A process – normally handled by one or more independent consultants working directly for the Owner – to ensure that particular building systems are planned, designed, installed, tested, optimized, and capable of being operated and maintained to perform in accordance with the Owner's goals and requirements.

**Construction Documents:** Drawings, specifications, revisions, addenda, and other information which set forth in detail the Work.

**Construction Price:** The dollar amount for which a Builder agrees to perform the Work set forth in a Contract for Construction.

**Construction Schedule:** The timetable which sets forth pertinent dates for timely completion of the Work.

Contract for Construction: The entire agreement between Owner and Builder, consisting of the Owner-Builder Agreement and all exhibits thereto; these General Terms and Conditions; special conditions, if any; proposal(s) submitted by the Builder and accepted by Owner, if any; the Construction Documents; any amendments or addenda executed by the Owner and the Builder hereafter; and Owner-approved change order(s) or field orders. Documents not included or expressly contemplated in this definition do not, and shall not, form any part of the Contract for Construction. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, shop drawings and other submittals from the Builder or its subcontractors and suppliers do not constitute a part of the Contract for Construction.

**Final Completion:** The stage of construction when the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract for Construction and the Owner has received all documents and items necessary for closeout of the Work. Final Completion of the Work shall be deemed to have occurred on the later of: (i) the date that the Work passes a Final Completion inspection, or (ii) the date that the Builder has produced all required Final Completion close-out documentation and items. Final Completion shall not be deemed to have occurred and no final payment shall be due the Builder or any of its subcontractors or suppliers until the Work has passed the Final Completion inspection and Builder has provided all required Final Completion closeout documentation and items to the Owner.

Hazardous Substances: The term "Hazardous Substances" means all hazardous or toxic substances, materials, wastes, pollutants and contaminants which are listed, defined, or regulated under applicable laws, rules, regulations, codes, ordinances, orders and directives pertaining or related to health, safety, or the environment, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251 to 1387), the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7401 to 7671q), the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 11001 to 11050), the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C.A. §§ 2601 to 2692), the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 6901 to 6992k), the Oil Pollution Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 2701 to 2761) and all rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, "Hazardous Substances" shall specifically include polychlorinated biphenyl, asbestos (friable and non-friable), radon, urea formaldehyde, gasoline, diesel, oil, hydrocarbons, petroleum derived constituents, biomedical waste, or hazardous or toxic residue.

**Owner**: The University of Florida Board of Trustees, a public body corporate of the State of Florida.

**Owner's Related Parties:** The Board of Governors and its officers, trustees, and employees; and the Owner and its officers, trustees, and employees.

**Professional:** An entity, including but not limited to a licensed architect or engineer, engaged directly by the Owner to provide design or engineering services.

**Project**: Owner's undertaking to effect the construction, installation, renovation, or demolition of a facility or improvement, as the case may be, that is the subject of the Contract for Construction between Owner and Builder.

**Site:** The geographical location of a Project, usually defined by legal boundary lines, and the location characteristics including, but not limited to, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining structures, rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, existing buildings and improvements, and service and utility lines.

**Substantial Completion (or Substantially Complete):** The stage of construction when the Owner can occupy or beneficially use satisfactorily completed Work for its intended purpose and a certificate of occupancy has been issued. Substantial Completion of the Work shall be deemed to have occurred on the later of: (i) the date the Work passes all Substantial Completion inspections, (ii) the date Builder has produced the required Substantial Completion documentation and items, or (iii) the date Authorities Having Jurisdiction provide a certificate of occupancy.

**Work**: Any and all computers, construction machinery, documents, equipment, facilities, fixtures, furnishings, goods, heat, items, labor, licenses, management, materials, permits, products, services, supervision, supplies, systems, taxes, testing, tools, utilities, transportation, vehicles, and water, required to be performed or supplied and/or necessary for proper execution and completion of the Project, or some portion thereof, whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated into the Project; provided, however, that Work does not include performance of preconstruction services by a construction manager.

#### **ARTICLE 2 – CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS**

# 2.1 Quantity and Format of Documents

The Owner shall provide the Builder with one printed set of Construction Documents, one set of electronic documents (plans and specifications) in PDF format, and one set of BIM files.

#### 2.2 Minimum Requirements

In every case, requirements established by the Construction Documents shall be considered as the minimum acceptable standard.

# 2.3 Owner Disclaimer of Warranty

The Owner has requested that its Professional(s) prepare Construction Documents for the Project, including the plans and specifications, which are to be complete, accurate, coordinated, and adequate for bidding, negotiating, and constructing the Work. However, the Owner makes no representation or warranty of any nature whatsoever to the Builder concerning the Construction Documents or BIM documents. The Builder hereby acknowledges and represents that it has not relied, and does not and will not rely, upon any representations or warranties by the Owner concerning such documents, as no such representations or warranties have been or are hereby made.

#### 2.4 Conflicts in Documents

In the event of any conflict, discrepancy, or inconsistency among any of the documents comprising the Contract for Construction, the following shall control:

- 2.4.1 As between figures given on plans and scaled measurements, the figures shall govern;
- 2.4.2 As between large-scale plans and small-scale plans, the large-scale plans shall govern;
- 2.4.3 As between plans and specifications, the requirements of the specifications shall govern:
- 2.4.4 As between plans or specifications and BIM models, the requirements of the plans or specifications shall govern.
- 2.4.5 As between architectural drawings and (structural, civil, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, or fire protection) engineering drawings, the engineering drawings shall govern.

#### 2.5 Contract Changes

The Builder understands and agrees that the Contract for Construction – including the Construction Documents – cannot be changed except as provided herein. No act, omission, or course of dealing by the parties shall alter the requirement that modifications of the Contract for Construction must be accomplished by written documents signed by the parties.

#### ARTICLE 3 – BUILDER'S REVIEWS AND EVALUATIONS

#### 3.1 Sufficiency of Construction Documents

The Builder acknowledges its continuing duty to review and evaluate the Construction Documents during the performance of its services and shall immediately notify the Owner and the Professional(s) of any (i) problems, conflicts, defects, deficiencies, inconsistencies, or omissions it discovers in or between the Construction Documents; and (ii) variances it discovers between the Construction Documents and applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, or regulations.

- 3.1.1 If the Builder performs any Work it knows or should have known involves (i) a recognized problem, conflict, defect, deficiency, inconsistency or omission in the Construction Documents; or (ii) a variance between the Construction Documents and requirements of applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, regulations, or the Owner's design and construction standards without notifying the Professional(s) and prior to receiving written authorization to proceed, the Builder shall be responsible for the consequences of such performance.
- 3.1.2 Drawings are generally drawn to scale; however, the figured dimensions or notes thereon shall govern. Before ordering any materials or doing any Work, the Builder and subcontractors shall verify all measurements at the Site and shall be responsible for the correctness of same. Discrepancies shall be reported in writing to the Professional prior to proceeding with the Work. No extra charge or compensation will be entertained due to differences between actual measurements and dimensions indicated on drawings, if such differences do not result in a change in the scope of Work or if the Professional failed to receive written notice before the Work was performed.

#### 3.2 Sufficiency of Site

Prior to signing the Contract for Construction, the Builder has:

- (i) visited the Site and become familiar with local conditions under which the Project is to be constructed and operated; and
- (ii) reviewed and familiarized itself with the Site survey and any existing structures on the Site, and gathered all other information necessary for a full understanding of the Work.

In addition, if the Work involves modifications to or remodeling of an existing structure(s) or other man-made feature(s) on the Site, the Builder has also:

(iii) reviewed all as-built and record drawings, plans and specifications of which Owner has informed Builder; and

(iv) thoroughly inspected the structure(s) and man-made feature(s) to be modified or remodeled prior to submission of bid, if any, but in all events prior to signing the Contract for Construction.

Claims resulting from the Builder's failure to familiarize itself with the Site or pertinent documents shall be deemed waived.

#### ARTICLE 4 – BUILDER'S DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

#### 4.1 Performance Of Work

The Builder shall perform and complete its obligations under the Contract for Construction using its best skill and attention, and covenants with the Owner to furnish management, supervision, coordination, labor, and services (i) which expeditiously, economically and properly complete the Work in the manner most consistent with the Owner's interests and objectives; (ii) which comply with the Contract for Construction; and (iii) which are in accordance with the highest standards currently practiced by persons and entities performing or providing management, supervision, coordination, labor and services on projects similar in size, complexity, and cost to the Project.

- 4.1.1 The Builder shall not be required to provide professional services which constitute the practice of architecture or engineering, unless provided in the Construction Documents and relating to those divisions of the Work for which it is appropriate for Builder's subcontractors to engage or employ licensed engineers for design associated with the Work, such as trusses.
- 4.1.2. All services rendered by the Builder for the Project shall be performed by or under the immediate supervision of persons possessing expertise in the discipline of the service being rendered.
- 4.1.3 The Builder shall, in the course of providing the Work, cooperate and communicate with the Owner, the Professional, the Owner's Commissioning consultants, and all other persons or entities as required for satisfactory completion of the Project.
- 4.1.4 The Builder understands and acknowledges that the Work referred to in the Contract for Construction may be only part of the Project and that the Project may include the construction of other structures or other construction activities on the same Site. The Builder shall conduct all its activities so as not to interfere with the construction of, or operations within or from, other structures on the Site.
- 4.1.5 The Builder shall not damage, endanger, compromise, or destroy any part of the Project or the Site, including by way of example and not limitation, work being performed by others on the Site, monuments, stakes, benchmarks and other survey points, utility services, and existing features or structures on the Site. Should the Builder damage, compromise or destroy any part of the Project or the Site, the Builder shall be fully and exclusively responsible for and bear all costs associated therewith.

## 4.2 Compliance With Laws

- 4.2.1 The Builder shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of all governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities and agencies having jurisdiction over the Project.
- 4.2.2 The Builder shall prepare and file documents required to obtain, and shall obtain, all necessary approvals and permits, including building permit(s), of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work, provided Owner shall pay all building permit and state fire marshal inspection fees directly.
- 4.2.3 The Builder shall give all notices required of it by governmental authorities relating to the Project.

#### 4.3 Safety

Safety shall be a prime concern of the Builder at all times. The Builder shall be solely responsible for and have control over the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures for coordinating and constructing the Work, including Site safety and safety precautions and programs.

#### 4.4 On Site Records

- 4.4.1 The Builder shall maintain at the Site one copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, approved shop drawings, daily logs, change orders, submittals, other modifications, and all other documents generated throughout the course of the project in good order. The daily logs shall contain detailed information regarding weather conditions, materials delivered, work performed, operating hours, subcontractors working on the Project, and staffing of each subcontractor.
- 4.4.2 The Builder shall continuously update all drawings and specifications to reflect changes as they occur throughout construction. Such "as-built" plans and specifications shall be available at all times to the Owner, the Professional(s), the Owner's consultants, and quality control and testing agency personnel. The drawings shall be neatly and clearly marked in color during construction to record all variations made during construction, and the Builder shall include such supplementary notes and details necessary to clearly and accurately represent asbuilt construction.
- 4.4.3 Depending on the requirements of the project-specific BIM Execution Plan, the Builder shall also maintain copies of the BIM models that reflect the as-built or as-installed conditions, geometry, and product/equipment information.

#### 4.5 Bribes and Kick-Backs

The Builder shall not by any means:

- (i) induce any person or entity employed in the construction of the Project to give up any part of the compensation to which that person or entity is entitled;
- (ii) offer or accept any bribes or kick-backs in connection with the Project from or to any individual or entity, including any of its trade contractors, subcontractors, consultants, suppliers, or manufacturers of Project goods and materials; or

(iii) without the express written permission of the Owner in accordance with Owner's policies, call for or by exclusion require or recommend the use of any subcontractor, consultant, product, material, equipment, system, process, or procedure in which the Builder has a direct or indirect proprietary or other pecuniary interest.

### 4.6 Quality Control And Testing

The Builder shall develop and implement a quality management program to ensure quality construction. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract for Construction, the Builder shall procure the quality control and testing agencies, subject to Owner's written approval. The Builder shall coordinate all tests and inspections required by the Construction Documents, and the Builder shall arrange for tests and inspections to be conducted as necessary to avoid any interference with the progress of Work. No claims for extension of time or extra costs will be allowed on account of any testing, retesting, inspection, re-inspection, or rejection of Work when defective or deficient Work is found. Cost of specified measures and tests required by the Construction Documents and performed by Owner-approved quality control and testing agencies shall be included in the Cost of the Work.

#### 4.7 Incident Reporting

The Builder shall immediately notify the Owner and Professional(s), both orally and in writing, of the nature and details of all incidents which may adversely affect the quality or progress of the Work including, but not limited to, union jurisdictional disputes, accidents, delays, damages to Work, and other significant occurrences.

#### 4.8 Hazardous Substances

The Builder shall immediately notify the Owner and the Professional(s), both orally and in writing, of the presence and location of any physical evidence of, or information regarding, environmental contamination on the Site (including but not limited to Hazardous Substances and petroleum releases) of which it becomes aware. If the Builder encounters environmental contamination (including but not limited to Hazardous Substances), the Builder shall (i) immediately stop performance of Work or that portion of the Work affected by or affecting such contamination; (ii) secure the contaminated area against intrusion; (iii) not disturb or remove the contamination; (iv) not proceed, or allow any subcontractor or supplier to proceed, with any Work or other activities in the area affected by such contamination until directed to do so by the Owner; and (v) take any other steps necessary to protect life and health.

#### 4.9 Owner's Use Of and Access To The Site

The Builder shall perform the Work so as not to interrupt any operations of the Owner on, adjacent to, or near the Site.

- 4.9.1 The Builder understands and acknowledges that the Owner may need access to or use of certain areas of the Site or Work prior to the Builder's achievement of Substantial Completion, and that such occupancy, access, or use shall not constitute the Owner's acceptance of any Work.
- 4.9.2 The Builder shall not enter any Owner-occupied area of the Site or Project unless first approved and scheduled by the Owner. The Builder understands and acknowledges that the Owner may incur damages if the Owner's operations on the Site are interrupted or impaired as a result of the Work.

4.9.3 The Builder shall afford the Owner's own forces and other consultants, trade contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers, access to the Site for performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate its construction and operations with theirs as required by the Construction Documents.

#### 4.10 Utilities

The Builder shall be responsible for all costs associated with connections to, and consumption of, utilities required for temporary service and construction.

# ARTICLE 5 – BUILDER'S PERSONNEL, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND SITE FACILITIES

#### 5.1 Project Staffing

The Builder shall staff the Project with qualified and designated individuals and entities responsible for its obligations and performance.

- 5.1.1 An authorized representative of the Builder shall be present at all times when Work is being performed.
- 5.1.2 The Builder shall employ persons skilled in the tasks assigned to them and shall contract with subcontractors and suppliers skilled in the tasks assigned to them and capable of working harmoniously with all trades, crafts and other individuals on the Project. The Builder shall use its best efforts to minimize the likelihood of any strike, work stoppage, or other labor disturbance.
- 5.1.3 Students, faculty, and staff shall not be harassed, disturbed, or in any way disrupted in their lawful pursuits. The Builder shall immediately remove from the Site, for the duration of the Project, any person making an inappropriate religious, racial, sexual or ethnic comment, statement or gesture toward any other individual. Sexual harassment shall be reported to the University's Title IX Coordinator and Deputy Title IX Coordinator for Students as prescribed elsewhere in the Contract for Construction.
- 5.1.4 The Builder shall immediately remove from the Site, for the duration of the Project, any person who is incompetent, careless, or not working in harmony.
- 5.1.5 The Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of Builder's agents and employees, consultants, subcontractors, and suppliers.
- 5.1.6 Employees of the Builder and its subcontractors shall be screened for and banned from working on the Owner's property if found to have committed certain crimes as described elsewhere in the Contract for Construction. The cost of such screening shall be included in the Construction Price.

#### 5.2 Subcontractor / Supplier Contracts

The Builder shall enter into written contracts with its subcontractors and suppliers, and those written contracts shall be consistent with the Contract for Construction. It is the intent of the Owner and the Builder that the obligations of the Builder's subcontractors and

suppliers inure to the benefit of the Owner and the Builder, and that the Owner be a third-party beneficiary of the Builder's agreements with its subcontractors and suppliers.

- 5.2.1 The Builder shall make available to each subcontractor and supplier, prior to the execution of written contracts with any of them, a copy of the pertinent portions of the Contract for Construction, including those portions of the Construction Documents to which the subcontractor or supplier will be bound, and shall require that each subcontractor and supplier shall similarly make copies of applicable parts of such documents available to its respective subcontractors and suppliers.
- The Builder shall include in its written contracts with subcontractors and suppliers a provision that includes the acknowledgment and agreement of the subcontractor or supplier that it has received and reviewed the applicable terms, conditions, and requirements of the Contract for Construction included by reference in its written contract with the Builder, and that it will abide by those terms, conditions, and requirements.
- 5.2.3 The Builder's written contracts with its subcontractors and suppliers shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and include the acknowledgment and agreement of each subcontractor or supplier that the Owner is a third-party beneficiary of the contract. The Builder's agreements with its subcontractors and suppliers shall require that in the event of default under, or termination of, the Contract for Construction, and upon request of the Owner, the Builder's subcontractors and suppliers will perform services for the Owner.
- 5.2.4 Without limitation of the foregoing subsections, the Builder's written contracts with its subcontractors and suppliers shall include the following provision: "When the Builder receives payment from the Owner for labor, services, or materials furnished by subcontractors and suppliers hired by the Builder for the Project, the Builder shall remit payment due to those subcontractors and suppliers, less the value of any item contested in accordance with the Contract for Construction, within ten (10) days after the Builder's receipt of payment from the Owner. When the payment due the subcontractor is for final payment, including retainage, the subcontractor must include with the invoice for final payment, a conditional release of lien and all required warranties and closeout documentation. When the subcontractor receives payment from the Builder for labor, services, or materials furnished by the subcontractors and suppliers hired by the subcontractor, the subcontractor shall remit payment due to those subcontractors and suppliers, less the value of any item contested in accordance with the Contract for Construction, within ten (10) days after the subcontractor's receipt of payment."

#### 5.3 Resolution of Trade Disputes

The Builder shall promptly resolve claims, complaints, labor disputes, and disputes over assignment of work tasks by and among its subcontractors and suppliers.

# ARTICLE 6 – GOODS, PRODUCTS, AND MATERIALS

### 6.1 Quality Of Materials

The Builder shall furnish goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems that:

- (i) comply with the Contract for Construction;
- (ii) conform to applicable specifications, descriptions, instructions, drawings, data, and samples;
- (iii) are new (unless otherwise specified or permitted) and without apparent damage;
- (iv) are of quality, strength, durability, capacity, or appearance equal to or higher than that required by the Construction Documents;
- (v) are merchantable;
- (vi) are free from defects; and
- (vii) exceed and/or are in addition to those required by manufacturers' or suppliers' specifications where such additional items are required by the Construction Documents.

#### 6.2 Installation And Use Of Materials

All goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems shall, unless specifically stated otherwise, be furnished, used, installed, employed, and protected in strict compliance with the specifications, recommendations, and instructions of the manufacturer or supplier, unless such specifications, recommendations, or instructions deviate from accepted construction practices or the Construction Documents, in which case the Builder shall so inform the Owner and Professional and shall proceed as directed by that Professional, unless otherwise directed by the Owner. The Builder shall coordinate and interrelate all trade contracts and subcontracts to ensure compatibility of goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems – and validity of all warranties and guarantees – required by the Construction Documents for the Work.

#### 6.3 Unsuitable Materials

The Builder shall inform the Owner of goods, products, materials, and equipment or systems the Builder knows are unsuitable or unavailable at the time of bid submission. Claims relating to or arising out of claims that goods, products, materials, equipment, or systems are unsuitable or unavailable shall not be entertained by the Owner unless the Builder, subcontractor, or supplier notified the Owner in writing at the time of bid submission, along with proposed alternatives. Approval by the Owner and the Professional does not mean or imply final acceptance by the Owner and Professional if such items should be defective or not as previously represented. Should the Builder furnish any approved goods, products, materials, equipment, or systems different from or in addition to those required by the Construction Documents which require supplemental materials or installation procedures different from or in addition to those require for specified items, the Builder shall provide such at no increased cost to the Owner.

#### 6.4 Substitutions

There shall be no substitution of products, materials, or equipment unless approved by the Professional in advance of procuring such goods, except as expressly permitted by the Contract for Construction.

### 6.5 Construction Manager Responsibility

If Builder is acting as a construction manager, Builder shall also inform the Owner and Professional during the various stages of design development if proposed materials or equipment do not conform with the Owner's construction budget, Owner's program and/or project requirements, or Owner's design and construction standards.

#### 6.6 Security For The Project

The Builder shall provide security for the Project, including but not limited to security for Work in progress and for the goods, products, materials, equipment, systems, construction machinery, tools, devices, and other items required, used, or to be used for performing the Work.

#### **ARTICLE 7 – DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION**

#### 7.1 Information from Owner

The Owner shall provide the Builder with information reasonably necessary to assist the Builder in performing its services including, if applicable and available:

- (i) the Site legal description and any required survey;
- (ii) all written and tangible material of which it informs Builder concerning conditions below ground at the Site;
- (iii) if the Project involves an existing structure, all as-built drawings, record drawings, plans, specifications, and structural information; and
- (iv) the Owner's pertinent Project dates and key milestone dates.

#### 7.2 Resolution of Questions

The Builder shall resolve all questions concerning the Construction Documents with the Professional(s) who prepared the documents.

# 7.3 Processing of Documents

When requested to do so by the Owner, the Builder shall process documents and provide other reasonably required drawings, services, and certifications necessary to enable the Owner to (i) obtain permits or other approvals not otherwise required to be obtained by Builder and (ii) represent that the Work complies with the requirements of Authorities Having Jurisdiction.

#### 7.4 Sufficiency of Owner Information

The furnishing of information by the Owner to the Builder shall not relieve the Builder of responsibilities contained elsewhere in the Contract for Construction to evaluate information and documents provided by the Owner. The Builder shall timely notify the Owner in writing of any additional information needed or services required from the Owner in order for the Builder to perform the Work.

#### **ARTICLE 8 – SUBMITTALS**

#### 8.1 Submittal Schedule

The Builder shall timely prepare and transmit to the Professional a schedule for provision of all anticipated submittals and shop drawings. The schedule shall (i) include submittals required by the specifications; (ii) be in a format acceptable to the Professional; (iii) be coordinated with the Construction Schedule; and (iv) set forth specific dates for submission of the listed submittals.

#### 8.2 Processing of Submittals

The Builder shall in timely fashion review, approve or reject as necessary, and forward approved submittals to the Professional for review and approval along with such detail and information as the Professional requires. No part of the Work dealt with by a submittal shall be fabricated or performed until such approval has been given.

- 8.2.1 Submittals and shop drawings shall be provided in electronic format searchable PDF for product data and other submittals; DWG, RVT, or other Navisworks-compatible software for shop drawings.
- 8.2.2 The Professional is responsible to the Owner, but not to the Builder, to verify that the submittals conform to the design concept and functional requirements of the plans and specifications, that the detailed design portrayed in shop drawings and proposed equipment and materials shown in submittals are of the quality specified and will function properly, and that the submittals comply with the Contract for Construction.
- 8.2.3 All Work shall be performed in accordance with approved submittals. Approval of submittals by the Professional shall not relieve the Builder from complying with the Contract for Construction, including all plans and specifications, addenda thereto, and approved Change Orders.
- 8.2.4 Re-submittals required to correct errors, omissions, or invalid substitutions by the Builder or its subcontractors shall not constitute an excusable or compensable delay.

#### 8.3 Record Documents

The Builder shall provide to Owner final and complete electronic copies of all submittals and shop drawings, updated and annotated as needed to illustrate the products, equipment, and materials actually installed.

# ARTICLE 9 – BUILDER'S INSPECTION AND CORRECTION OF DEFECTIVE OR INCOMPLETE WORK

# 9.1 Rejection and Correction of Work In Progress

During the course of Project, the Builder shall inspect and promptly reject any Work that (i) does not conform to the Construction Documents or (ii) does not comply with any applicable law, statute, building code, rule, or regulation of any governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities or Authorities Having Jurisdiction.

- 9.1.1 The Builder shall promptly correct or require the correction of all rejected Work, whether observed before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed. The Builder shall bear all costs of correcting such Work, including additional testing and inspections and compensation for all services and expenses necessitated by such correction.
- 9.1.2 The Builder shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged Work, whether completed or partially completed, of the Owner or other trade contractors or subcontractors caused by the Builder's correction or removal of rejected Work.

#### 9.2 Covered or Concealed Work

If a portion of the Work has been covered, the Builder shall, if notified to do so by the Owner or the Professional, uncover the designated portion for observation and then replace it.

- 9.2.1 If the designated portion of the Work was covered contrary to the request of the Owner or the Professional, or to requirements specifically expressed in the Construction Documents, the Builder shall receive no additional compensation for the costs of uncovering and replacement or modification of the Construction Schedule.
- 9.2.2 If the designated portion of the Work was covered prior to a specific request by the Owner or the Professional that it remain uncovered, the Builder shall receive additional compensation for the costs of uncovering and replacement or modification of the Construction Schedule(s) only if the designated portion of the Work was in conformance with the Construction Documents.

# ARTICLE 10 – CHANGE ORDERS, CHANGES TO THE WORK, AND CHANGED CONDITIONS

# 10.1 Change Order Proposals and Requests

Builder may propose, and Owner or the Professional may request, changes to the Work, compensation, or applicable schedules.

- 10.1.1 With respect to Builder's proposals for changes, the Builder shall prepare and submit change order proposals to the Professional, together with appropriate back-up documentation.
- 10.1.2 With respect to Owner's and/or the Professional's requests for changes, the Builder shall promptly review and respond to such requests provided by the Owner or the Professional.
- 10.1.3 When requested to do so, the Builder shall prepare and submit to the Professional drawings, specifications, detailed cost estimates as prescribed below, or other data in support of a change order proposal or request.
- 10.1.4 Each Builder-submitted change order proposal shall include any and all time and monetary impacts of the change, whether the change order is considered alone or with all other changes during the course of the Project, together with substantiating back-up documentation.

#### 10.2 Owner-Directed Changes

The Owner may unilaterally direct the Builder to implement changes in the Work so long as the Work the Owner is requiring is not outside of the general scope of the Contract for Construction, and the Builder, upon written direction from the Owner, shall proceed with such change.

## 10.3 Professional-Directed Changes

The Professional, without the Owner's prior approval, may authorize or direct the Builder to make minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Construction Documents and which do not involve a change in Project cost, time for construction, scope, or approved design elements. Any such minor changes shall be implemented by written field order or supplemental instruction from the Professional and executed promptly by the Builder.

#### 10.4 Administration of Changes

The Professional will administer and manage all change orders and change order proposals or requests – including claims for additional compensation, time, or both – and will prepare required drawings, specifications, and other supporting data in connection therewith.

#### 10.5 Compensation for Changes

With respect to all change order proposals or requests involving credit to the Owner or additional compensation to the Builder, the Builder shall (i) obtain from subcontractors and suppliers the best possible price quotations; (ii) review such quotations to ascertain whether they are reasonable; (iii) prepare an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data, including reasonable expenditures by, and savings to, those performing the Work involved in the proposed change; and (iv) provide a reasonable and detailed price quotation to the Professional.

- 10.5.1 If Professional determines price quotations for change order proposals or requests are unreasonable, the Builder shall, in writing, justify said quotations or provide additional back-up documentation. If, after review of the additional information, the Professional determines the quotation is unreasonable, the Owner may require the subject Work be performed on a time and material basis.
- 10.5.2 The Builder and its subcontractors and suppliers shall be allowed no additional compensation for any costs, fees, or expenses incurred in performing services already required by the Contract for Construction, and shall not be entitled to additional reimbursement for home office, other non-jobsite or indirect overhead expenses, or tools necessary for construction.
- 10.5.3 It is the responsibility of the Builder to review and approve all pricing of additional work required of its subcontractors and suppliers.

#### 10.6 Concealed and Unforeseen Conditions

If (i) the Builder encounters concealed or unforeseen conditions of an unusual nature that affect performance of the Work; or (ii) the conditions vary from those indicated by the Construction Documents; and (iii) such conditions are not ordinarily found to exist or differ materially from those generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided by the Builder, the Builder shall promptly, but in no event later than seven (7) calendar

days after first observance of the conditions, notify the Professional and the Owner before conditions are disturbed and give the Professional or the Owner opportunity to observe the condition in its undisturbed state.

- 10.6.1 Owner and Professional shall promptly investigate the conditions. If Owner and Professional determine, within their discretion, that the conditions (i) differ substantially from those indicated in the Construction Documents and (ii) cause a material increase or decrease in the Builder's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work, then compensation and/or time for performance will be equitably adjusted.
- 10.6.2 All adjustments in compensation or extensions of time shall be by change order. Change order proposals or requests shall be submitted within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of observation of the changed or unknown conditions.
- 10.6.3 The Builder's failure to notify the Professional and Owner as provided in this Article shall constitute a waiver of any claim arising out of or relating to such concealed or unknown condition.

#### 10.7 Performance of Changes

Upon Builder's receipt of an executed change order or approved change order proposal, changes in the Work shall be promptly performed. All changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable conditions of the Construction Documents.

## 10.8 Disputes Regarding Changes

- 10.8.1 Regardless if there is a dispute (i) that a change has occurred; (ii) whether a change in the Work will result in adjustment of compensation or applicable schedules; or (iii) as to the amount of any adjustment of compensation or applicable schedules, the change shall be carried out if the Owner so directs. No claim shall be prejudiced by performance of the Work so long as the Owner is notified of the claim in writing prior to performance of the Work which is the subject of the dispute and the party disputing the decision of the Owner recites the reasons for its dispute in the written notice. Failure to notify the Owner in writing shall constitute a waiver of any claim resulting from the change.
- 10.8.2 In the event a change order proposal is approved by the Owner in the absence of an agreement as to cost, time, or both, the Professional will (i) receive and maintain all documentation pertaining thereto; (ii) examine such documentation on the Owner's behalf; (iii) take such other action as may be reasonably necessary or as the Owner may request; and (iv) make a written recommendation to the Owner concerning any appropriate adjustment in the Construction Price or time.

#### 10.9 Necessity for Signature Approval

No act, omission, or course of dealing shall alter the requirement that change orders shall be in writing and signed by the Owner, and that change orders are the exclusive method for effecting any adjustment to compensation or applicable schedules. The Builder understands and agrees, on behalf of itself and its subcontractors and suppliers, that neither compensation nor applicable schedules can be changed by implication, oral agreement, or unwritten change order.

# ARTICLE 11 – OWNER'S CONSULTANT(S) AND CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION

#### 11.1 Owner's Designated Professional Representative

Unless otherwise directed by the Owner, the Professional shall act as the Owner's agent for design-related issues, interpretation of the Construction Documents, and other matters described in these General Terms & Conditions.

- 11.1.1 The Professional will be the Owner's design representative during performance of the Work and will consult with and advise the Owner on all design and technical matters.
- 11.1.2 The Professional will act as initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract for Construction and as the Owner's advisor on claims.

#### 11.2 Professional Site Visits

The Professional will visit the Site with sufficient frequency for familiarization with the progress and quality of the Work and to inspect the Work to determine compliance of the Work with (i) the Contract for Construction; (ii) approved shop drawings and other submittals; (iii) the Construction Schedule; and (iv) applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, or regulations of all governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities or Authorities Having Jurisdiction.

#### 11.3 Professional Rejection of Work

The Professional may disapprove or reject Work which does not comply with (i) the Contract for Construction; (ii) approved shop drawings and other submittals; or (iii) applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, or regulations of any governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities and Authorities Having Jurisdiction.

#### 11.4 Professional Evaluations

- 11.4.1 The Professional will review and evaluate the results of all inspections, tests, and written reports required by the Contract for Construction and by any governmental entity having or asserting jurisdiction over the Project. The Professional will take appropriate action, if necessary, arising from such evaluations, including acceptance, rejection, requiring additional testing or corrective work, or such other action deemed appropriate by the Professional. The Professional will promptly reject Work which does not conform to and comply with testing requirements.
- 11.4.2 The Professional may require inspection or testing of any Work in addition to that required by the Contract for Construction or governmental entities having or asserting jurisdiction over the Project when such additional inspections and testing is necessary or advisable, whether or not such Work is then fabricated, installed, or completed. The Professional will take appropriate action on all such special testing and inspection reports, including acceptance, rejection, requiring additional testing or corrective work, or such other action deemed appropriate by the Professional.

#### 11.5 Professional Submittal Activities

The Professional will review and approve, reject, or take other appropriate action on submittals such as shop drawings, product data, samples, proposed equal materials or

equipment, and requested substitutions not more than fourteen (14) calendar days after receipt, and will not approve any submittals unless such submittals conform to the Construction Documents. The Professional's review of submittals shall not constitute final acceptance of materials or equipment furnished or installed if such materials or equipment prove to be defective or not as represented by approved submittals or as otherwise required by the Construction Documents. The Builder remains responsible for details and accuracy, for confirming and correlating all quantities and dimensions, for selecting fabrication processes, for techniques of assembly, and for performance of the Work.

#### 11.6 Professional Interpretations

The Professional will, when requested to do so in writing by the Builder, promptly and so as to cause no unnecessary delay, render written or graphic interpretations and decisions necessary for the proper execution of the Work. The Professional's interpretations and decisions relating to aesthetic or artistic effect shall be final if not inconsistent with the Contract for Construction.

## 11.7 Professional Pay Application Activities

The Professional will review applications for payment, including such accompanying data, information, and schedules as the Professional requires, to verify the amounts due to the Builder and shall authorize payment by the Owner to the Builder in writing. After the Work is determined to be Finally Complete by the Professional, the Professional will certify to the Owner in writing that the Builder is entitled to final payment and submit the pay application to the Owner for final approval.

#### 11.8 Professional Relationship to Builder

The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the Builder under the Contract for Construction shall not be changed, abridged, altered, discharged, released, or satisfied by any duty, obligation, or responsibility of any Professional. The Builder shall not be a third-party beneficiary of any agreement by and between the Owner and any Professional. The duties of the Builder to the Owner shall be independent of, and shall not be diminished by, any duties or obligations of any Professional to the Owner.

#### 11.9 Commissioning Consultant

The Owner may also employ an independent Commissioning consultant to verify performance and/or quality of certain building systems or components. The Builder shall coordinate the Work and its schedule and activities with the Commissioning consultant and shall act upon the observations and recommendations of same, provided such action does not conflict with the Contract for Construction or specific direction by the Owner or the Professional.

The Builder shall perform functional performance testing of items being commissioned under the supervision of the Owner's Commissioning consultant.

#### ARTICLE 12 - SUBSTANTIAL AND FINAL COMPLETION

#### 12.1 Substantial Completion

12.1.1 When the Builder believes that the Work is Substantially Complete, it shall notify the Owner and the Professional that the Work is ready for a Substantial Completion inspection. The Builder shall endeavor to give the Owner and the

- Professional notice two (2) weeks prior to the predicted Substantial Completion inspection date(s).
- 12.1.2 Upon receipt of notification from the Builder, the Professional will coordinate with the Owner and the Builder date(s) for inspection(s) of the Work to determine whether the Work is Substantially Complete.
- 12.1.3 Prior to such inspections, the Builder shall develop a comprehensive list of known discrepancies, deficiencies, or incomplete Work (i.e., the "punchlist").
- 12.1.4 At inspection(s) to determine whether the Work is Substantially Complete, the Professional, the Commissioning consultant(s), the Owner, and other governing or concerned entities will:
  - (i) inspect the Work;
  - (ii) create or append punchlists;
  - (iii) review the overall status of the Work and any outstanding or deficient issues; and
  - (iv) determine whether Substantial Completion of the Work has occurred.
- 12.1.5 If the Work is determined not to be Substantially Complete, the Work shall be prosecuted until the Work is Substantially Complete and the inspection process shall be repeated at no additional cost to the Owner until the Work is determined to be Substantially Complete. Builder will be responsible for costs of the Owner's consultants associated with premature or failed inspections.
- 12.1.6 On or prior to the required date of Substantial Completion, the Builder shall deliver to Owner reports, extra materials, and other necessary documents and items for the Owner's occupancy and use of the Work for its intended purpose. These documents and items are enumerated on the Owner's website (<a href="www.facilities.ufl.edu">www.facilities.ufl.edu</a>). The Professional will review such documentation and items, and will inform the Owner and the Builder of any deficiencies.
- 12.1.7 When the Owner, the Builder, and the Professional agree that the Work has passed Substantial Completion inspection(s) and the Builder has produced the required Substantial Completion documentation and items, they shall each sign the Owner's standard Certificate of Substantial Completion form, declaring the Work Substantially Complete and establishing the actual date of Substantial Completion. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall also be accompanied by a final, consolidated punchlist.
- 12.1.8 If the Work is commissioned through the services of a Commissioning consultant, such Commissioning including functional performance tests shall be completed as a pre-requisite to the Work being declared Substantially Complete, provided Builder shall not be responsible for delays in Commissioning not the fault of Builder.

- 12.1.9 The Builder shall provide the Owner with operation and maintenance documents not less than forty-five (45) calendar days prior to the required date of Substantial Completion to allow adequate time for review, correction, and training of the Owner's personnel prior to Commissioning and the Owner's occupancy of the Project.
- 12.1.10 The Builder shall meet with the Owner's personnel prior to the required date of Substantial Completion to familiarize and train them with respect to maintenance and use of the Project. All training sessions shall be recorded (audio and visual), with copies provided to the Owner.
- 12.1.11 The date of Substantial Completion shall fix the commencement date of warranties and guaranties and allocate between the Owner and the Builder responsibility for security, utilities, damage to the Work, and insurance.

#### 12.2 Final Completion

- 12.2.1 When the Builder believes the Work has achieved Final Completion (including correction of all punchlist items), the Builder shall notify the Owner and the Professional that the Work is ready for Final Completion inspection.
- 12.2.2 Upon receipt of such notification from the Builder, the Professional will coordinate with the Owner and the Builder a date for inspection of the Work to determine whether the Work has achieved Final Completion.
- 12.2.3 At the Final Completion inspection, the Owner and the Professional will:
  - (i) inspect the Work;
  - (ii) determine whether all punchlist items have been satisfactorily completed and corrected;
  - (iii) determine whether the Work complies with (a) the Contract for Construction; (b) applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, or regulations of all governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities or Authorities Having Jurisdiction; and (c) applicable installation and workmanship standards;
  - (iv) determine whether required inspections and approvals by the official(s) having or asserting jurisdiction over the Project (including, but not limited to, the AHJ) have been satisfactorily completed; and
  - (v) confirm receipt of the deliverables listed below.
- 12.2.4 If Final Completion has not been achieved, the Builder shall continue to prosecute the Work, and the inspection process shall be repeated at no additional cost to the Owner, until Final Completion is achieved.
- 12.2.5 On or prior to the date of Final Completion, the Builder shall deliver to the Owner the following documentation and items:

- (i) Certificate of Final Completion executed on Owner's standard form:
- (ii) all operation and maintenance manuals not previously produced;
- (iii) one (1) set of as-built plans and specifications;
- (iv) record copies of BIM files as required by the project-specific BIM Execution Plan, if applicable;
- (v) certification and affidavit that all insurance required of the Builder beyond final payment, if any, is in effect and will not be canceled or allowed to expire without notice to the Owner;
- (vi) written consent of the surety(ies), if any, to final payment;
- (vii) full, final, and unconditional waivers of mechanics or construction liens, from each contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or other person or entity who has or might have a claim;
- (viii) full, final, and unconditional certification and affidavit that all of the Builder's obligations to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, and other third parties for payment for labor, materials or equipment related to the Project have been paid or otherwise satisfied;
- (ix) all written warranties and guarantees relating to the labor, goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems incorporated into the Work, endorsed, countersigned, and assigned as necessary;
- (x) affidavits, releases, bonds, waivers, permits, and other documents necessary for final close-out of Work;
- (xi) a list of any item(s) due but unable to be delivered and the reason for nondelivery; and
- (xii) any other documents reasonably and customarily required or expressly required herein for full and final close-out of the Work, including those items enumerated on the Owner's website (www.facilities.ufl.edu).
- 12.2.6 The Professional will review and determine the sufficiency of all such documentation and items and will immediately inform Owner and the Builder of any deficiencies and omissions.

#### **ARTICLE 13 – BUILDER'S WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES**

#### 13.1 One-Year Warranty

In addition to the warranties and guarantees set forth elsewhere in the Contract for Construction, the Builder, upon request by the Owner or the Professional, shall promptly correct all failures or defects in the Work for a period of one year after the actual date of Substantial Completion, or the date of acceptance by the Owner, whichever is later.

- 13.1.1 The Builder shall schedule, coordinate, and participate in a walk-through inspection of the Work one month prior to the expiration of the one-year correction period, and shall notify the Owner, the Professional, and any necessary subcontractors and suppliers of the date of, and request their participation in, the walk-through inspection. The purpose of the walk-through inspection is to determine if there are defects or failures requiring correction.
- 13.1.2 Should the Builder fail to promptly correct any failure or defect, the Owner may take whatever actions it deems necessary to remedy the failure or defect and the Builder shall promptly reimburse the Owner for any expenses or damages it incurs as a result of the Builder's failure to correct the failure or defect.

## 13.2 Post-Completion Commissioning Activities

The Builder and its subcontractors shall participate in Commissioning activities following Substantial Completion as prescribed in the Construction Documents, the purpose of which is to confirm and optimize performance of the commissioned systems. Such participation may include the need for the Builder to perform corrective work if deficiencies in the Work are revealed.

#### 13.3 Express Warranties and Guarantees – Builder

In addition to the warranties and guarantees set forth elsewhere herein, the Builder expressly warrants and guarantees to the Owner:

- (i) that the Work will comply with the Construction Documents and all applicable laws, statutes, building codes, rules, and regulations of all governmental, public, and quasi-public authorities or Authorities Having Jurisdiction;
- (ii) that all goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems incorporated into the Work will conform to applicable specifications, descriptions, instructions, drawings, data, and samples;
- (iii) that all goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems incorporated into the Work will be new (unless otherwise specified or permitted) and without apparent damage or defect; of quality equal to or higher than that required by the Construction Documents; and merchantable; and
- (iii) that all management, supervision, labor, and services required for the Work will comply with the Contract for Construction and will be performed in a workmanlike manner.

#### 13.4 Express Warranties and Guarantees – Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Builder shall require that all of its subcontractors and suppliers provide written warranties, guarantees, and other undertakings to the Owner and the Builder in a form identical to the warranties, guarantees, and other undertakings set forth in the Contract for Construction, including the warranties, guarantees, and undertakings set forth in this Article, which warranties, guarantees, and undertakings shall run to the benefit of the Owner as well as the Builder.

#### 13.5 Non-Exclusivity and Survival

The warranties and guarantees set forth in this Article shall be in addition to all other warranties – express, implied, or statutory – and shall survive the Owner's payment,

acceptance, inspection of or failure to inspect the Work, and review of the Construction Documents.

#### 13.6 Non-Limitation

Nothing contained in Paragraph 13.1 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to the Builder's obligations under the Contract for Construction. Paragraph 13.1 relates only to the Builder's specific obligations with respect to the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the Builder's contractual obligations under the Contract for Construction may be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Builder's liability with respect to any contractual obligations pursuant to Paragraph 13.1 or contained elsewhere herein.

#### 13.7 Commencement of Obligations

Unless otherwise specified, all of the Builder's warranty and guaranty obligations, including the time period(s) for all written warranties and guarantees of specifically designated equipment required by the Construction Documents, shall begin on the actual date of Substantial Completion or the date of acceptance by the Owner, whichever is later.

#### ARTICLE 14 - OWNER'S DUTIES, OBLIGATIONS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

## 14.1 Timely Compensation of Builder

The Owner shall, in a timely manner, compensate the Builder in accordance with the Contract for Construction.

#### 14.2 Owner Review of Documents

The Owner shall review documents prepared by the Builder in a timely manner and in accordance with schedule requirements. Review by the Owner shall be solely for the purpose of determining whether such documents are generally consistent with the Owner's intent. No review of such documents shall relieve the Builder of any of its responsibilities. In addition, the Owner's review of documents for purposes of issuing a building permit shall not relieve the Builder of any of its responsibilities.

#### 14.3 Status of Owner

The Owner shall not have control of, or responsibility for, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, or safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the Builder, for any of the foregoing purposes, be deemed the agent of the Owner.

#### ARTICLE 15 – BUILDER'S COMPENSATION

#### 15.1 Schedule of Values

- 15.1.1 Prior to submitting its first application for payment for the Work, the Builder shall prepare and present to the Owner and Professional for approval a schedule of values (SOV) using the Owner's form.
- 15.1.2 For construction management projects, this SOV shall be based on the draft schedule of values submitted with the GMP proposal, adjusted to account for the final subcontract award amounts.

- 15.1.3 Allowances for un-awarded trade subcontracts may be included in the SOV.
- 15.1.4 The Builder shall not imbalance or artificially inflate any element in the SOV.
- 15.1.5 Upon the Owner's acceptance, the SOV shall be used to process and pay the Builder's payment requests.
- 15.1.6 The Builder shall comply with the Trench Safety Act (Chapter 553, Part VI, Florida Statutes), which requires that builders delineate in their Schedules of Values the cost of compliance with applicable trench safety standards.

#### 15.2 Unit Prices

If any portion of the Construction Price is determined by the application of unit prices, the number of units contained in the Schedule of Values is an estimate only, and compensation to the Builder shall be determined by the actual number of units incorporated in, or required by, the Work.

#### 15.3 Invoicing Procedures

In accordance with the procedures and requirements set forth in the Owner's policies, the Builder shall invoice the Owner and the Owner shall pay the Builder the amount due subject to the following and the Contract for Construction.

- 15.3.1 The Builder shall submit invoices to the Professional requesting payment for labor and services rendered during the preceding thirty calendar days. Each invoice shall contain such detail and be backed up with whatever supporting information the Owner or the Professional requests and shall at a minimum state:
  - (i) the total original Construction Price and total current Construction Price;
  - (ii) the amount due for properly provided labor, materials, and equipment properly incorporated into the Project; and with respect to amounts invoiced for materials or equipment necessary for the Project and properly stored at the Site (or elsewhere if offsite storage is approved in writing by the Owner), be accompanied by written proof that the Owner has title to such materials or equipment and that such material and equipment is fully insured against loss or damage;
  - (iii) a breakdown of the various phases, bid packages, or parts of the Work as related to the Construction Price in accordance with standard Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) format;
  - (iv) the value of the various phases, bid packages, or parts of the Work actually performed;
  - (v) previously invoiced amounts and credit payments made;
  - (vi) the total amount due, less any agreed retainage; and
  - (vii) a summary of change orders to date.

Applications for payment shall also include such lien waivers and other documentation verifying the Builder's payment to subcontractors and suppliers as the Owner or Professional may request.

15.3.2 Goods and materials procured through the Owner Direct Purchase process shall be invoiced separately in accordance with Owner's policies.

#### 15.4 Payment Procedures

- 15.4.1 Within seven (7) days of receipt, the Professional will review the Builder's applications for payment, including such accompanying data, information, and schedules as the Professional requires, to determine the amounts due to the Builder and, based upon such review, together with its inspections of the Work, shall authorize payment by the Owner to the Builder in writing. Such authorization will constitute the Professional's certification to the Owner that:
  - (i) the Work described in the Builder's invoice has progressed to the level indicated and has been performed in accordance with the Contract for Construction;
  - (ii) all necessary and appropriate lien waivers have been submitted;
  - (iii) the "as-built" record documents are current and up-to-date; and
  - (iii) the amount requested is currently due and owing to the Builder.
- 15.4.2 In the case of unit price work, the Professional's recommendations for payment will constitute a final determination of quantities and classifications of such work.

#### 15.5 Owner's Right to Refuse Payment

The Professional's approval of the Builder's invoice shall not preclude the Owner from exercising any of its remedies under the Contract for Construction. In the event of a dispute, payment shall be made within the timeframe(s) prescribed herein for amounts not in dispute, subject to any exceptions claimed by the Owner. The Owner shall have the right to refuse to make payment and, if necessary, may demand the return of all or a portion of the amount previously paid to the Builder due to:

- (i) the Builder's failure to perform the Work in compliance with the requirements of the Contract for Construction or any other agreement between the parties;
- (ii) the Builder's failure to correctly and accurately represent the Work performed in a payment request, or otherwise;
- (iii) the Builder's performance of the Work at a rate or in a manner that, in the Owner's opinion, is likely to result in the Project or any portion of the Project being inexcusably delayed;
- (iv) the Builder's failure to use funds previously paid the Builder by the Owner to pay the Builder's Project-related obligations including, but not limited to, the Builder's subcontractors, materialmen, and suppliers;

- (v) claims made, or likely to be made, against the Owner;
- (vi) loss caused by the Builder or the Builder's subcontractors or suppliers; or
- (vii) the Builder's failure or refusal to perform any of its obligations to the Owner.

#### 15.6 Builder's Right to Refuse Performance for Non-Payment

If – within twenty (20) calendar days of Owner's receipt of the Builder's application for payment properly prepared in accordance with Owner's policies and approved and executed by the Professional – the Owner, without cause or basis hereunder, fails to pay the Builder any amounts then due and payable to the Builder, the Builder shall have the right, in addition to all other rights and remedies contained herein, to cease performance of the Work until receipt of proper payment after first providing fourteen (14) calendar days written notice to the Owner of its intent to cease work.

#### 15.7 Correction of Past Payments

All prior payments, whether based on estimates or otherwise, may be corrected and adjusted in any subsequent payment and shall be corrected and adjusted in the final payment. In the event that any invoice contains a defect or impropriety which would prevent payment by the date due, the Owner shall notify the Builder in writing of such defect or impropriety. Any disputed amounts determined by the Owner to be payable to the Builder shall be due thirty (30) calendar days from the date the dispute is resolved.

#### 15.8 Invoice Warranties and Guarantees

The Builder expressly warrants and guarantees to the Owner that:

- (i) title to all goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems covered by an invoice will pass to the Owner either by incorporation into the Work, or upon receipt of payment by the Builder, whichever occurs first;
- (ii) all goods, products, materials, equipment, and systems covered by an invoice are free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances; and
- (iii) no goods, products, materials, equipment, or systems covered by an invoice have been acquired by the Builder or its subcontractors or suppliers, subject to an agreement under which an interest therein or an encumbrance thereon is retained by the seller or otherwise imposed by the Builder or its subcontractors or suppliers.

### 15.9 Builder's Signature

The signature of the Builder on any invoice constitutes the Builder's certification to the Owner that (i) the Builder's services listed in the invoice have progressed to the level indicated and have been performed as required by the Contract for Construction; (ii) the Builder has paid its subcontractors and suppliers their proportional share of all previous payments received from the Owner; (iii) the amount requested is currently due and owing; and (iv) all subcontractors performing the Work for which payment is made hold all necessary State of Florida licenses.

## 15.10 Taxes and Owner Direct Purchase Program

15.10.1 The Builder shall incorporate into the Construction Price, and pay, all sales, consumer, use, and similar taxes for goods, products, materials, equipment, and

- systems incorporated into the Work that were legally required at the time of execution of the Contract for Construction, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect.
- 15.10.2 For construction management projects, the Owner may elect to implement a direct purchase program, whereby eligible materials or equipment included in a subcontractor's bid are purchased by the Owner directly from the supplier in order to achieve sales tax savings.
- 15.10.3 Such direct purchases shall not relieve the Builder and/or its subcontractors of their responsibility to ensure the materials and equipment meet the specifications and requirements of the Contract for Construction.
- 15.10.4 When Builder's Risk insurance is furnished by the Builder (see Article 19), such insurance shall name the Owner as the insured or an additional insured and shall include coverage of such materials in transit or stored offsite. Builder shall in any case be responsible for safeguarding such materials on the project Site on the Owner's behalf.
- 15.10.5 The Owner's written policy on direct purchases shall govern. See www.facilities.ufl.edu.

#### 15.11 Compensation of Builder's Subcontractors and Suppliers

- 15.11.1 Not less than forty-five (45) days after satisfactory completion of their portion of the Work, subcontractors may invoice Builder for remaining unpaid Work, including the full value of the retainage related to such Work less the value of any contested item(s), and provided each such subcontractor has provided Builder with all required close-out documentation. Builder shall include subcontractor pay requests in the Builder's application for payment. No later than ten days (10) after receipt of payment from the Owner, the Builder shall pay each of its subcontractors and suppliers out of the amount received by the Builder on account of such subcontractor's or supplier's portion of the Work, the amount to which each entity is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the Builder on account of such entity's portion of the Work, if any.
- 15.11.2 The Owner shall have no obligation to pay, and shall not be responsible for payments to, the Builder's subcontractors or suppliers. However, the Owner reserves the right, but has no duty, to make payment jointly to the Builder and to any of its subcontractors or suppliers in the event that the Owner becomes aware that the Builder fails to pay or unreasonably withholds payment from one or more of those entities. Such joint check procedure, if employed by the Owner, shall create no rights in favor of any person or entity beyond the right of the named payees to payment of the check and shall not be deemed to commit the Owner to repeat the procedure in the future.

#### 15.12 Retainage

Subject to other provisions herein, and pursuant to Section 255.078, Florida Statutes, Owner will withhold and release retainage from each payment to Builder in accordance with the following:

- 15.12.1 Owner will withhold as retainage from each progress payment made to the Builder an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the payment until the Work is fifty percent (50%) complete.
- 15.12.2 After the Work is fifty percent (50%) complete, Owner shall reduce the amount of retainage withheld from each subsequent progress payment made to the Builder to five percent (5%) of the amount of the payment.
- 15.12.3 After the Work is fifty percent (50%) complete, the Builder may present to the Owner a payment request for up to one-half of the retainage held by Owner, and Owner shall make payment to the Builder unless the Owner has grounds for withholding the payment of retainage (e.g., all or a portion of the retainage is the subject of a good faith dispute or a claim brought by Owner).
- 15.12.4 After the Work is fifty percent (50%) complete, the Builder may elect to withhold retainage from payments to its subcontractors at a rate higher than five percent (5%). The specific amount to be withheld must be determined on a case-by-case basis and must be based on the Builder's assessment of the subcontractor's past performance, the likelihood that such performance will continue, and the Builder's ability to rely on other safeguards. The Builder shall notify the subcontractor, in writing, of its determination to withhold more than five percent (5%) of the progress payment and the reasons for making that determination, and the Builder may not request the release of such retained funds from the Owner.

## 15.13 Final Payment

Prior to being entitled to receive final payment, and as a condition precedent thereto, the Builder must achieve Final Completion. The Owner shall, subject to its rights set forth above in this Article, make final payment of all sums due the Builder within twenty (20) calendar days of Owner's receipt of the Builder's application properly prepared in accordance with Owner's policies and approved and executed by the Professional.

#### ARTICLE 16 – SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS

#### 16.1 Construction Schedule

The Construction Schedule shall include all pertinent dates and periods for timely completion of the Work.

- 16.1.1 Unless otherwise directed and approved by the Owner, the Builder shall within fourteen (14) calendar days of the "Notice To Proceed" prepare a critical path method schedule with separate divisions for each major portion of the Work or operations. The Construction Schedule shall include and properly coordinate dates for performance of all divisions of the Work, including completion of offsite requirements and tasks, so that the Work can be completed in a timely and orderly fashion consistent with the required dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion. When preparing the schedule, Builder shall consider and account for Owner's operational needs on the Site and adjacent thereto, particularly with regard to utility interruptions and access restrictions.
- 16.1.2 The Construction Schedule shall depict all activities necessary for, or incidental to, performance of the Work, showing the logic (sequence, dependency), duration,

and "float" of each activity, with the critical path highlighted and shall include (i) the required dates of commencement, Substantial Completion, and Final Completion; (ii) any guideline and milestone dates required by the Owner; (iii) any applicable subcontractor and supplier sub-schedules; (iv) coordination with the submittal schedule which allows sufficient time for review of documents and submittals; (v) allowances for procurement, fabrication, and delivery of materials, especially "long lead" items; (vi) the complete sequence of construction by activity, with dates for beginning and completion of each element of construction; (vii) the time required for testing, inspections, and Commissioning, if applicable; (viii) time for schedule constraints, such as holidays and events on Owner's property and adverse weather conditions which are normal and may be reasonably anticipated; and (ix) required decision dates.

- 16.1.3 By reviewing the Construction Schedule, the Owner and Professional do not assume any of the Builder's responsibility (i) that the Construction Schedule be coordinated or complete; or (ii) for timely and orderly completion by the required dates of Substantial Completion, Final Completion, or any milestone dates required by the Owner.
- 16.1.4 The Builder shall periodically and in all instances when the Builder anticipates that performance of the Work will be delayed or in fact has been delayed, but not less frequently than monthly, prepare a revised Construction Schedule and show actual progress of the Work through the revision date, projected completion of each remaining activity, activities modified since previous submittal, major changes in scope, and other identifiable changes. The updated Construction Schedule shall be accompanied by a narrative report which (i) states and explains any modifications of the critical path schedule, including any changes in logic; (ii) defines problem areas and lists areas of anticipated delays; (iii) explains the anticipated impact the problems and delays will have on the schedule and scheduled activities; (iv) reports corrective action taken or proposed; and (v) states how problems anticipated by projections shown on the schedule will be resolved to avoid delay in delivering the Work by the required dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion, and other milestone dates required by the Owner, if any.

#### 16.2 Delay in Performance

If at any time the Builder anticipates that performance of the Work will be delayed or in fact has been delayed, the Builder shall (i) immediately notify the Owner and Professional of the probable cause of and effect from the delay, and possible alternatives to minimize the delay; and (ii) take all corrective actions reasonably necessary to deliver the Work by the required dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion, and other milestone dates required by the Owner, if any.

#### 16.3 Early Completion

The Builder may attempt to achieve Substantial Completion before the required date of Substantial Completion. However, such planned early completion shall be for the Builder's sole convenience and shall not create any additional Builder rights or Owner obligations under the Contract for Construction, nor shall it change the required dates of Substantial Completion or Final Completion. The Owner shall not pay the Builder any additional compensation for achievement of Substantial Completion or Final Completion prior to the required dates nor will the Owner owe the Builder any compensation should the Owner

cause the Builder not to achieve Substantial Completion earlier than the required date of Substantial Completion or Final Completion earlier than the required date of Final Completion.

#### 16.4 Document Review

The Builder shall provide documents to the Owner and Professional(s) for review in accordance with schedule requirements and with sufficient lead time to allow the Owner and Professional reasonable time for review.

#### ARTICLE 17 - TIME OF PERFORMANCE

#### 17.1 Time of the Essence

The parties hereto mutually understand and agree that time is of the essence in the performance of the Contract for Construction and that the Owner will incur damages if the Work is not completed on time. The Builder shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as expeditiously as possible and shall begin, perform, and complete its services so that (i) the Work progresses in accordance with the Construction Schedule; (ii) the Work is Substantially Completed by the required date of Substantial Completion; and (iii) the Work is Finally Complete by the date of Final Completion.

#### 17.2 Modifications of Time for Performance

The Builder may submit delay claims or otherwise propose modifications to the dates for Substantial Completion, Final Completion, or other milestones required by the Owner, if any. However, such claims shall be submitted in writing and supported by evidence that the delay was excusable, critical, and, if applicable, compensable. The Builder shall determine and promptly notify the Owner and the Professional in writing when it believes such adjustments are necessary, but no such adjustments shall be effective unless approved in writing by the Owner and Professional.

- 17.2.1 Extensions of time will be granted only to the extent that equitable time adjustments for the impacted activity or activities exceed the total float along the network paths involved. Such claims shall include an estimate of cost, if any, and substantiate the projected impact on the overall critical path schedule of the Project. In the case of a continuing delay, only one claim is necessary.
- 17.2.2 Modification(s) of the required dates of Substantial Completion or Final Completion shall be accomplished only by duly authorized and accepted change order stating the new date(s) with specificity and reciting that all references in the Contract for Construction to the required dates of Substantial Completion or Final Completion shall thereafter refer to the date(s) as modified, and all rights and obligations, including the Builder's liability for actual damages, delay damages and liquidated damages, shall be determined in relation to the date(s) as modified.
- 17.2.3 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a delay claim, the claim shall be documented by data substantiating that: the weather conditions were abnormal for the given location and period of time; the weather conditions could not have been reasonably anticipated; and that the weather conditions had an adverse effect on the overall critical path of the schedule. Delays caused by adverse weather conditions are not compensable.

## 17.3 Compensable Delay

If the Builder is delayed at any time in the progress or performance of the Work by (i) acts or omissions of the Owner or Professional; (ii) major changes ordered by the Owner in the scope of Work; or (iii) any other cause which the Owner determines may justify the compensation of the Builder for the delay, the Builder's compensation shall be equitably adjusted to cover the Builder's actual and direct increased costs attributable to such delay.

#### 17.4 Excusable Delay

If the Builder is delayed at any time in the progress or performance of the Work by (i) acts or omissions of the Owner or Professional; (ii) major changes ordered by the Owner in the scope of Work; (iii) fire; (iv) unusual delays in transportation; (v) adverse abnormal weather conditions that Builder could not have reasonably anticipated; (vi) unavoidable casualties; (vii) causes beyond the Builder's control which the Owner agrees in writing are justifiable; or (viii) any other cause that the Owner determines may justify the delay. Owner may extend the time for performance to allow for a demonstrated increase in overall construction duration, which may or may not be equal to the length of such delay, but only if (a) such delay is not concurrent with other, inexcusable delay(s); (b) such delay impacts the critical path; (c) such delay is not in any way caused by default or collusion on the part of the Builder or by any cause which the Builder could reasonably control or circumvent; (d) the Builder would have otherwise been able to timely perform all of its obligations under the Contract for Construction but for such delay; and (e) immediately but not later than fourteen (14) calendar days after the beginning of any such delay the Builder gives notice of its delay claim to the Owner. Such delay claims shall be submitted as a change order proposal. All such claims will be reviewed by the Professional within seven (7) days of submission. Delay caused by labor disputes, picketing, employee boycotts, or the like which directly or indirectly involves employees of the Builder or its subcontractors and suppliers is not the responsibility of the Owner and will result in time extensions only if agreed to in writing by the Owner at the time such events arise.

#### 17.5 Critical Delay

Additional work, unforeseen conditions, and other factors may result in one or more schedule activities being delayed. If, however, the critical path is not impacted and the overall construction duration and completion date(s) remain the same, the delay is not critical.

#### ARTICLE 18 - PROPRIETARY DOCUMENTS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

#### 18.1 Nature and Use of Information

All information, documents, and electronic media furnished by the Owner to the Builder (i) belong to the Owner; (ii) are proprietary and confidential; (iii) are furnished solely for use on the Owner's Project; (iv), shall be kept confidential by the Builder; and (v) shall not be used by the Builder on any other project or in connection with any other person or entity, unless disclosure or use thereof in connection with any matter other than services rendered to the Owner hereunder is specifically authorized in writing by the Owner in advance or is required by law. The Owner hereby grants to the Builder a limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Construction Documents necessary for execution of the Work. All copies made under this license shall bear the statutory copyright notice, if any, shown on the documents.

#### 18.2 Ownership of Information

All information, documents, and electronic media prepared by or on behalf of the Builder for the Project are the sole property of the Owner, free of any retention rights of the Builder. The Builder hereby grants to the Owner an unconditional right to use, for any purpose whatsoever, any information, documents or electronic media prepared by or on behalf of the Builder for the Project, free of any copyright claims, trade secrets, or other proprietary rights with respect to such documents.

#### 18.3 Disclosure of Information

The Builder shall not disclose any information it receives from the Owner to any other person or entity except to the extent necessary to allow it to perform its duties under the Contract for Construction or as required by law.

#### 18.4 Instructions to Employees

Because it is difficult to separate proprietary and confidential information from that which is not, the Builder shall instruct its employees and agents to regard all information not in the public domain as information that is proprietary and confidential.

#### 18.5 Non-Publication

Submission or distribution of documents to meet official regulatory requirements or for other required purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the Owner's common law copyrights or other reserved rights.

#### **ARTICLE 19 – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

#### 19.1 Basic Insurance Requirements

The Builder shall obtain and maintain the policies of insurance set forth in this Article with a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in Florida, and with an A.M. Best Rating of no less than A, XV. All insurance policies shall be issued and countersigned by duly authorized representatives of such companies and shall be written on ISO standard forms or their equivalents. The insurance policies shall require that the insurer shall provide at least thirty (30) days written notice to Owner if a policy is to be canceled or the coverage thereunder reduced before the expiration date thereof and Builder shall provide Owner with a copy of an endorsement to the policy evidencing the same. The insurance required hereunder shall be carried by Builder at least until the Project has achieved Final Completion and has been accepted by Owner. At the Owner's sole discretion, the Owner may require the Builder and/or its subcontractors to carry additional types and amounts of insurance it deems appropriate given the nature and size of a particular Project. In such case, Owner shall notify Builder within a reasonable period of time prior to the commencement of the Work of such additional requirements.

#### 19.1.1 Liability Insurance

#### 19.1.1.1 **Commercial General Liability Insurance**.

The Builder shall obtain and maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy with limits of not less than the following:

- \$1,000,000 each occurrence and \$2,000,000 project aggregate for bodily injury, property damage, personal and advertising injury liability
- \$1,000,000 each occurrence and \$2,000,000 project aggregate for products and completed operations liability
- \$50,000 fire legal liability

Builder's commercial general liability policy must include coverage for contractual liability, independent contractors, and contain no exclusions for explosion, collapse, or underground damage. The University of Florida Board of Trustees and its officials, employees, and volunteers shall be covered as an additional insured with a form CG-20-26-04-13 Additional Insured – Designated Person or Organization or equivalent endorsement. The Builder's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to the Owner, its officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Owner, its officials, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of Builder's insurance and shall be non-contributory. Builder's insurance policy shall protect Builder from claims which may arise whether such claims may arise out of the operations of the Builder or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Builder. If Builder is performing asbestos-related work, the policy shall also contain a pollution liability endorsement with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

## 19.1.1.2 Automobile Liability Insurance.

Builder shall obtain and maintain automobile liability coverage, including coverage for all Owned vehicles, hired, and non-owned vehicles, for bodily injury and property damage with not less than a \$500,000 combined single limit for each accident. The University of Florida Board of Trustees shall be covered as an additional insured with a form *CA-20-48* or similar endorsement on such policy.

#### 19.1.1.3 **Deductibles**.

Deductibles under these liability policies shall not exceed \$25,000. Owner shall not be liable for amounts that may represent a deductible in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of the Builder and/or subcontractor providing such insurance.

#### 19.1.2 Worker's Compensation

Builder shall obtain and maintain worker's compensation coverage applicable to all Builder's employees at statutory limits in compliance with applicable state and federal laws. If any operations are to be undertaken on or about navigable waters, coverage must be included in accordance with the US Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act.

Such coverage shall include employer's liability limits of not less than \$100,000 each accident, \$500,000 disease policy limit, and \$100,000 disease each employee.

The Builder and its insurance carrier waive all subrogation rights against the Owner for all losses, damages, and/or events that occur while the Contract for Construction is in effect, regardless of whether suit is actually brought during such period or at a later date. The Owner requires all worker's compensation policies to be endorsed with form *WC00-03-13 Waiver of Right to Recover from Others* or equivalent.

#### 19.1.3 Builder's Risk Insurance

The Builder shall obtain and maintain builder's risk insurance, at replacement cost, covering the full value of the construction being performed, including where applicable, the existing structure. Such policy shall be written on an all-risk

coverage form including flood and windstorm coverage, and shall include coverage for reasonable compensation for the Professional's services and expenses required as a result of such insured loss. This insurance shall insure the interests of the Builder, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors in the Work. Property covered by the insurance shall include temporary building(s) or structure(s) at the Project Site, other than any of Builder's office trailer(s). In addition, such insurance shall cover portions of the Work stored offsite (if Owner approves such storage) and materials and equipment in transit. The University of Florida Board of Trustees shall be named as an additional insured on such policy. The policy shall include a waiver of subrogation endorsement and a severability of interests endorsement, and shall also include a waiver of occupancy clause allowing the Owner to occupy the subject facility during construction, if necessary.

The deductible under the policy shall not exceed \$25,000. Owner shall not be liable for amounts that may represent a deductible in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of the Builder.

When the Work includes the repair, removal, installation, and/or testing of live steam boilers, valves, pipes, or lines, or mechanized, pressurized, or electrical equipment, then such insurance shall include boiler and machine/equipment breakdown coverage, written on an ISO form or its equivalent.

A loss or losses insured under this insurance policy shall be adjusted by the Builder and its insurance company. The Builder shall repair or replace the damaged property with the proceeds from the builder's risk policy. The Builder shall be responsible for all damages and necessary repairs whether or not the loss is covered by the builder's risk policy.

Alternatively, the Owner may elect to obtain and directly pay for Builder's Risk insurance through Owner's statewide program.

#### 19.2 Certificates of Insurance

- 19.2.1 Certificates of insurance and/or evidence of insurance for all insurance policies required under this Article, together with certified copies of the insurance policies (including required endorsements), shall be filed with and approved by the Owner prior to commencement of the Work.
- 19.2.2 Such certificates of insurance shall be dated and show the name of the insurer, the number of the policy, its effective date, and its termination date.
- 19.2.3 Certificates of insurance evidencing the renewal of all insurance required to be carried under this Article shall be provided to Owner at least thirty (30) days prior to the date each applicable insurance policy is scheduled to expire.
- 19.2.4 Certificates must provide for thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Owner of any policy cancellation or material change in coverage.
- 19.2.5 Owner's review, inspection, or approval of Builder's insurance shall not relieve Builder of its responsibility for providing the insurance required hereby nor constitute a waiver of any such requirements.

19.2.6 Owner will not issue a "Notice To Proceed" for the Work until Builder has complied with this Article and Builder shall not be entitled to an extension of time or to compensation which may result from delays in the issuance of a "Notice to Proceed" caused by its failure to provide the foregoing certificates and policies in a timely manner.

#### 19.3 Effect of Insurance

Compliance with insurance requirements shall not relieve the Builder of any responsibility to indemnify the Owner for any liability to the Owner as specified in any other provision of the Contract for Construction, and the Owner shall be entitled to pursue any remedy in law or equity if the Builder fails to comply with the contractual provisions of the Contract for Construction. Indemnity obligations specified elsewhere in the Contract for Construction shall not be negated or reduced by virtue of any insurance carrier's (i) denial of insurance coverage for the occurrence or event which is the subject matter of the claim; or (ii) refusal to defend any named insured.

#### 19.4 Waiver of Subrogation

The Builder's insurers shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the Owner and the Owner's Related Parties. The Builder hereby releases and discharges the Owner and the Owner's Related Parties of and from all liability to the Builder, and to anyone claiming by, through, or under the Builder, by subrogation or otherwise, on account of any damage or loss, whether to persons or property, however caused.

#### **ARTICLE 20 – GENERAL BOND REQUIREMENTS**

#### 20.1 General Bond Requirements

Recognizing the Project is a public project with a Construction Price which exceeds \$200,000, and as such is required to be bonded pursuant to 255.05, Florida Statutes, the Builder shall furnish payment and performance bonds on Owner's standard form covering the full and faithful performance of the Contract for Construction and the payment of obligations arising hereunder. Such bonds shall, in all respects, comply with Section 255.05, Florida Statutes.

#### 20.2 Delivery of Bonds

The Builder shall deliver required bonds and powers of attorney to the Owner prior to commencement of the Work.

## 20.3 Requests for Copies of Bonds

Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising under the Contract for Construction, the Builder shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall permit a copy to be made.

#### ARTICLE 21 – OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP WORK

#### 21.1 Cease and Desist Order

If the Builder fails or refuses to perform or fails to correct defective Work as required, or persistently fails to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract for Construction,

the Owner may, by written notice, order the Builder to cease and desist in performing the Work or any portion of the Work until the cause for the order has been eliminated to the satisfaction of the Owner. Upon receipt of such instruction, the Builder shall immediately cease and desist as instructed by the Owner and shall not proceed further until the cause for the Owner's order has been corrected, no longer exists, or the Owner instructs that the Work may resume.

- 21.1.1 The Builder shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the time for performance or the Construction Price under this clause since such stoppages are considered to be the fault of the Builder.
- 21.1.2 The right of the Owner to stop Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Builder or others.
- 21.1.3 In the event the Owner issues instructions to cease and desist, and in the further event that the Builder fails and refuses with seven calendar days to provide adequate assurance to the Owner that the cause of such instructions will be eliminated or corrected, then the Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to carry out the Work or any portion of the Work with its own forces, or with the forces of another builder, and the Builder shall be responsible for the cost of performing such Work by the Owner.
- 21.1.4 The rights set forth herein are in addition to, and without prejudice to, any other rights or remedies the Owner may have against the Builder.

# ARTICLE 22 – TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

#### 22.1 Termination for Cause by Owner

- 22.1.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract for Construction for cause if the Builder materially breaches the Contract for Construction by:
  - (i) refusing, failing, or being unable to properly manage or perform on any Project;
  - (ii) refusing, failing, or being unable to supply the Project with sufficient numbers of workers, properly skilled workers, proper materials to maintain applicable schedules;
  - (iii) refusing, failing, or being unable to make prompt payment to subcontractors or suppliers;
  - (iv) disregarding laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority or quasi-public authorities or Authorities Having Jurisdiction;
  - (v) refusing, failing, or being unable to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract for Construction as determined by the Owner, or as otherwise defined elsewhere herein; or

- (vi) refusing, failing, or being unable to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of any other agreement between the Owner and Builder.
- 22.1.2 Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in Paragraph 22.1.1, the Owner may give written notice to the Builder setting forth the nature of the default and requesting cure within seven calendar days from the date of notice. At any time after issuance of such notice, if the Builder fails to initiate the cure or if the Builder fails to expeditiously continue such cure until complete, the Owner may give written notice to the Builder of immediate termination, and the Owner, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies, may take any or all of the following actions:
  - (i) complete all or any part of the Work, including supplying workers, material and equipment which the Owner deems expedient to complete the Work;
  - (ii) contract with others to complete all or any part of the Work, including supplying workers, material, and equipment which the Owner deems expedient to complete the Work;
  - (iii) take such other action as is necessary to correct such failure;
  - (vi) take possession of all materials, tools, construction equipment, and machinery on the Site owned or leased by the Builder;
  - (v) directly pay the Builder's subcontractors and suppliers compensation due to them from the Builder;
  - (vi) finish the Work by whatever method the Owner may deem expedient; and
  - (vii) require the Builder to assign the Builder's right, title and interest in any or all of Builder's subcontracts or orders to the Owner.
- 22.1.3 If the Owner terminates the Contract for Construction for cause, and the Owner takes possession of all materials, tools, construction equipment, and machinery on the Site owned or leased by the Builder, the Builder's compensation shall be increased by fair payment, either by purchase or rental at the election of the Owner, for any materials, tools, construction equipment, and machinery items retained, subject to the Owner's right to recover from the Builder the Owner's damages resulting from the termination.
- 22.1.4 If the Owner terminates the Contract for Construction for cause, and it is subsequently determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that such termination was without cause, then in such event, said termination shall be deemed a termination for convenience as set forth in Paragraph 22.3.

#### 22.2 Termination for Cause by Builder

22.2.1 The Builder may terminate the Contract for Construction for cause if the Owner materially breaches the Contract for Construction by:

- (i) refusing, failing, or being unable to make prompt payment to the Builder without just cause;
- (iv) disregarding laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority of quasi-public authority or Authorities Having Jurisdiction; or
- (v) refusing, failing, or being unable to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract for Construction.
- 22.2.2 Upon the occurrence of any of the events described in Paragraph 22.2.1, the Builder may give written notice to the Owner setting forth the nature of the default and requesting cure within seven calendar days from the date of notice. If the Owner fails to cure the default within seven calendar days, the Builder, without prejudice to any rights or remedies, may give written notice to the Owner of immediate termination.

## 22.3 Termination or Suspension for Convenience

The Owner may at any time give written notice to the Builder terminating the Contract for Construction or suspending the Project, in whole or in part, for the Owner's convenience and without cause. If the Owner suspends the Project for convenience, the Builder shall immediately reduce its staff, services and outstanding commitments in order to minimize the cost of suspension.

## 22.4 Builder's Compensation When Builder Terminates for Cause or Owner Terminates for Convenience

If the Contract for Construction is (i) terminated by the Builder pursuant to Paragraph 22.2; (ii) terminated by the Owner pursuant to Paragraph 22.3; or (iii) suspended more than three months by the Owner pursuant to Paragraph 22.3, the Owner shall pay the Builder specified amounts due for Work actually performed prior to the effective termination date and reasonable costs associated with termination. The Owner may agree to additional compensation, if any, due to the Builder. Absent agreement on the additional amount due the Builder, the Owner shall pay the Builder:

- (i) reasonable costs incurred in preparing to perform the terminated portion of the Work, and in terminating the Builder's performance, plus a fair and reasonable allowance for overhead and profit thereon (such profit shall not include anticipated profit or consequential damages); provided, however, that if it appears that the Builder would not have profited or would have sustained a loss if the Work had been completed, no profit shall be allowed or included, and the amount of compensation shall be reduced to reflect the anticipated rates of loss, if any; and
- (ii) reasonable costs of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts or supplier orders. These costs shall not include amounts paid in accordance with other provisions hereof.

#### 22.5 Builder's Compensation When Owner Terminates for Cause

If the Contract for Construction is terminated by the Owner for cause pursuant to Paragraph 22.1, no further payment shall be made to the Builder until Final Completion of the Project. At such time, the Builder shall be paid the remainder of the Construction Price less all costs and damages incurred by the Owner as a result of the default of the Builder,

including liquidated damages applicable thereto. The Builder shall additionally reimburse the Owner for any additional costs or expenses incurred.

## 22.6 Limitation on Termination Compensation

Irrespective of the reason for termination or the party terminating, the total sum paid to the Builder shall not exceed the Construction Price, as properly adjusted, reduced by the amount of payments previously made and penalties or deductions incurred pursuant to any other provision of the Contract for Construction, and shall in no event include duplication of payment.

#### 22.7 Builder's Responsibility upon Termination

Irrespective of the reason for termination or the party terminating, if the Contract for Construction is terminated, the Builder shall, unless notified otherwise by the Owner,

- (i) immediately stop work;
- (ii) terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts;
- (iii) settle the liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and orders; and
- (iv) transfer title and deliver to the Owner such completed or partially completed Work, and, if paid for by the Owner, materials, equipment, parts, fixtures, information and such contract rights as the Builder has.

#### 22.8 Lack of Duty to Terminate

The right to terminate or suspend the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of either the Owner or the Builder to exercise that right for the benefit of the Owner, the Builder or any other persons or entities.

#### 22.9 Limitation on Termination Claim

If the Builder fails to file a claim within one year from the effective date of termination, the Owner shall pay the Builder only for services actually performed and expenses actually incurred prior to the effective termination date.

#### **ARTICLE 23 – DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

#### 23.1 Mutual Discussion

In case of any dispute, claim, question or disagreement arising from or relating to the Project or arising out of the Contract for Construction or the breach thereof, the parties shall first attempt resolution through mutual discussion.

#### 23.2 Facilitative Mediation

If the parties cannot resolve any dispute, claim, question, or disagreement arising from or relating to the Project or arising out of the Contract for Construction or the breach thereof through mutual discussion, the parties may in good faith participate in private, non-binding facilitative mediation seeking a just and equitable solution satisfactory to all parties.

- 23.2.1 All parties to a mediation shall promptly provide all other parties to the mediation with copies of essential documentation relevant to the support or defense of the matter being mediated.
- 23.2.2 The parties shall not be required to mediate for a period greater than ninety-one calendar days unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties. The parties shall share equally any administrative costs and fees of such proceedings, but shall each be responsible for their own expenses otherwise incurred.
- 23.2.3 In the event that the statute of limitations would run during the required mediation period, either party may institute litigation so as to avoid the running of such statute upon the condition that such party immediately seek a stay of such litigation pending the conclusion of the mediation period.
- 23.2.4 During the course of mediation, any party to the mediation may apply for injunctive relief from any court of competent jurisdiction until the mediation period expires or the dispute is otherwise resolved.
- 23.2.5 The Owner, the Professional, the Builder, and any other parties involved in any way in the design or construction of the Project are bound, each to each other, by this requirement to mediate prior to commencement of any litigation or administrative action, provided that they have signed the Contract for Construction or an agreement that incorporates the Contract for Construction by reference or signed any other agreement which binds them to mediate. Each such party agrees that it may be joined as an additional party to a mediation involving other parties under any such agreement. In the case where more than one mediation is begun under any such agreement and any party contends that the mediations are substantially related, the mediations may be conducted by the mediator selected in the first mediation which was commenced.
- 23.2.6 The mediation shall be conducted in Alachua County, Florida, unless agreed otherwise by the parties.

#### 23.3 Conflicting Dispute Resolution Provisions

Neither party to the Contract for Construction shall enter into any contract with regard to the Project which directly or indirectly gives the right to resolve any dispute with, involving, or affecting the other to any other person or legal entity which is in conflict with the dispute resolution procedures required by this Article.

#### 23.4 Arbitration Preclusion

In case of a dispute relating to the Project, or arising out of the Contract for Construction, no party to the Contract for Construction shall be required to participate in or be bound by, any arbitration proceedings.

#### 23.5 Performance during Dispute Resolution

The Owner and the Builder agree that pending the resolution of any dispute, controversy, or question, the Owner and the Builder shall each continue to perform their respective obligations without interruption or delay, and the Builder shall not stop or delay the performance of the Work.

#### 23.6 Litigation/Administrative Action

Disputes, claims, questions or disagreements involving monetary claims of \$200,000.00 or less may be conducted, at the Owner's option, pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act, Chapter 120 Florida Statutes. All other claims, disputes and other matters shall be determined under the judiciary system of the State of Florida.

#### **ARTICLE 24 – DAMAGES AND REMEDIES**

#### 24.1 Builder's Repair

The Builder shall, at its expense, promptly correct, repair, or replace all goods, products, materials, systems, labor and services which do not comply with the warranties and guarantees set forth in the Contract for Construction, or any other applicable warranty or guarantee.

#### 24.2 Reimbursement

The Builder shall promptly reimburse the Owner for any expenses or damages incurred by the Owner as a result of (i) the Builder 's failure to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract for Construction; (ii) deficiencies or conflicts in the Construction Documents attributable to the Builder or of which the Builder was or should have been aware; (iii) breach of the warranties and guarantees set forth in the Contract for Construction or any other applicable warranty or guarantee; or (iv) other acts or omissions of the Builder. Reimbursements to the Owner made in accordance with this Article are separate and distinct from the assessment of liquidated damages, if any, as defined elsewhere in the Contract for Construction.

#### 24.3 General Indemnity

Pursuant to Section 725.06(2), Florida Statutes, the Builder shall indemnify and hold Owner (including its officers and employees) and Owner's Related Parties harmless from and against all liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful conduct of the Builder and persons employed or utilized by the Builder in the performance of the Work or under the Contract for Construction.

#### 24.4 Intellectual Property Indemnity

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Builder shall defend, protect, hold harmless, and indemnify the Owner and Owner's Related Parties from and against any and all liability, loss, claims, demands, suits, costs, fees and expenses (including actual fees and expenses of attorneys, expert witnesses, and other consultants), by whomsoever brought or alleged, for infringement of patent rights, copyrights, or other intellectual property rights, except with respect to designs, processes or products of a particular manufacturer expressly required by the Owner or Professional(s) in writing. However, if the Builder has reason to believe the use of a required design, process, or product is an infringement of a patent, copyright, or other intellectual property right, the Builder shall defend, protect, hold harmless, and indemnify the Owner and Owner's Related Parties as stated above, unless the Builder promptly notifies the Owner of that belief.

#### 24.5 Non-Exclusivity of Owner's Remedies

The Owner's selection of one or more remedies for breach of the Contract for Construction contained herein shall not limit the Owner's right to invoke any other remedy available to the Owner under the Contract for Construction or by law.

#### 24.6 Waiver of Damages

The Builder shall not be entitled to, and hereby waives, any monetary claims for or damages arising from or related to, lost profits, lost business opportunities, unabsorbed overhead, or any indirect or consequential damages.

#### **ARTICLE 25 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

#### 25.1 Integration

The Contract for Construction represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Builder, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, for the Project. The Contract for Construction may be amended only by written instruments signed by both the Owner and the Builder.

#### 25.2 Severability

If any provision of the Contract for Construction, or the application thereof, is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of that provision and all other provisions shall remain valid and enforceable.

#### 25.3 Waiver

No provision of the Contract for Construction may be waived except by written agreement of the parties. A waiver of any provision on one occasion shall not be deemed a waiver of that provision on any subsequent occasion, unless specifically stated in writing. A waiver of any provision shall not affect or alter the remaining provisions of the Contract for Construction.

#### 25.4 Strict Compliance

No failure of the Owner to insist upon strict compliance by the Builder with any provision of the Contract for Construction shall operate to release, discharge, modify, change or affect any of the Builder's obligations.

## 25.5 Third-Party Beneficiaries

The Contract for Construction shall inure solely to the benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, and, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract for Construction, nothing contained in the Contract for Construction is intended to or shall create a contractual relationship with, or any rights or cause of action in favor of, any third party against either the Owner or the Builder.

#### 25.6 Assignment of Anti-Trust Claims

In consideration for the Contract for Construction, the Builder hereby conveys, sells, assigns and transfers to the Owner all of its right, title and interest in and to any and all causes of action it may now have or may hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the State of Florida for price fixing, relating to the goods or services purchased or acquired by the Owner under the Contract for Construction.

#### 25.7 Drug Free and Tobacco-Free Workplace

Pursuant to 440.102(15), Florida Statutes, Builder shall implement, and cause its applicable subcontractors to implement, a drug-free workplace program. Additionally, the Builder shall enforce the Owner's tobacco-free policy.

#### 25.8 Survival

All provisions of the Contract for Construction which contain continuing obligations shall survive its expiration or termination.

## 25.9 Independent Contractor

Builder is an independent contractor to Owner.

#### 25.10 Public Records

Any books, documents, records, correspondence, or other information kept or obtained by the Owner or furnished by Builder to Owner in connection with the services contemplated herein are property of Owner.

- 25.10.1 Builder acknowledges and agrees that any and all such books, documents, records, correspondence or other information may be public records under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes
- 25.10.2 Builder agrees to promptly comply with any order of a Court having competent jurisdiction that determines that records maintained by Builder are "public records," which must be available to the public.
- 25.10.3 Builder acknowledges and agrees that any and all such books, documents, records, correspondence, or other information may also be subject to inspection and copying by members of the public pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.
- 25.10.4 The Contract for Construction may be unilaterally canceled by the Owner for refusal by the Builder to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or received by the Builder in conjunction herewith.

#### 25.11 Governing Law and Venue

The Contract for Construction shall be governed by, and construed under, the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to its choice of law provisions, and venue shall lie in the courts of Alachua County, Florida.

#### 25.12 Sovereign Immunity

Builder acknowledges and agrees that nothing contained in the Contract for Construction shall be construed or interpreted as (i) denying to Owner any remedy or defense available to it under the laws of the State of Florida; (ii) consent of the Owner or the State of Florida or their agents and agencies to be sued; or (iii) a waiver of sovereign immunity of the Owner or of the State of Florida beyond the limited waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

## PAINTING AND PRESSURE/POWER WASHING NON-TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- 1. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECTS Painting exterior and interior of University of Florida (UF) buildings and pressure washing, power washing and soft washing sidewalks, roofs and exterior of UF buildings. Painting substrates include but are not limited to steel, plaster, metal, brick, aluminum, wood, gypsum board, galvanized metal, concrete, fiberglass, EFIS, or cinder block. Interior painting may include but is not limited to classrooms, offices, corridors, mechanical/electrical rooms, animal rooms and support areas, doors, door frames and trim. Projects may be located on the University of Florida main campus, St. Augustine historic buildings, or at other UF and IFAS facilities throughout the State of Florida. Contractor will be required to furnish evidence satisfactory to the Owner that he or she has sufficient means and experience to perform the type of work specified, in order to assure completion of the contract in a satisfactory manner. Contractor should also have the manpower and capability of performing multiple projects simultaneously.
- NON-MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE A Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be held virtually on October 12, 2023 at 2:00 PM, at <a href="https://ufl.zoom.us/j/91659082935">https://ufl.zoom.us/j/91659082935</a>, for the purpose of considering questions posed by respondents for interested parties. Attendance is strongly encouraged.
- QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS This bid will be awarded only to responsible bidders qualified
  by experience and expertise to provide the work specified. For the purpose of determining
  qualification of bidders, bid responses should include the following documentation:
  - A. Evidence that bidder is licensed by the appropriate government agency to perform the work specified.
  - B. Proof of Insurance as required in Article 19 of the General Terms and Conditions.
    - a. General Liability \$1,000,000.00 per occurrence UF must be named additional insured
    - b. Automobile liability at least \$500,000 per occurrence UF must be named additional insured
    - c. Worker's Compensation per Chapter 440, Florida Statutes
  - C. References: List of projects/jobs of similar size and/or complexity which have been completed satisfactorily over the last three (3) years. Include location, date of completion, names of contract, and names, addresses and contact information (phone and email) of owners.
- 4. **PRICING** Provide an hourly labor rate for each personnel classification and percentage markup for materials. Contractors can choose to bid on painting and/or pressure washing.
- QUESTIONS AND REQUESTED FOR CLARIFICATION Contractor questions and requests for clarification related to this ITB should be submitted on the Q&A Board no later than October 19, 2023.
- 6. **BID PRICING EVALUATION** Pricing will be evaluated based on each bidder's average hourly rates. Painting and Pressure Washing hourly rates will be viewed independently of each other.
- 7. **AWARD** Award will be made in the best interest of the University to a pool of vendors which meet the requirements specified herein and has the lowest average hourly rate. After award, it

will be up to the discretion of the University which of the awarded vendors will be selected to quote individual projects under this contract. Award does not guarantee work.

- 8. **CONTRACT TERM** The effective period of contract resulting from this bid will be from the December 1, 2023, through November 30, 2024. The University of Florida shall have the option to renew this bid for three (3) additional one (1)-year periods upon written notice to and acceptance by the contractor. Renewal of this contract shall be contingent upon satisfactory evaluations by the University.
- 9. **CANCELLATION** University Procurement, by written notice, may terminate in whole or in part any contract resulting from this Invitation to Bid, when such action is in the best interest of the University. If the contract is terminated, the University shall be liable only for payment of services rendered prior to the effective date of the termination.
- 10. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The Successful Vendor shall purchase from and maintain with a company or companies, lawfully authorized to do business in Florida and acceptable to the University, such insurance as will protect the Successful Vendor from claims arising out of or resulting from the Successful Vendor's operations under the Agreement and for which the Successful Vendor may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Successful Vendor or by their subcontractors or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. All insurance policies shall be issued and countersigned by representatives of such companies duly authorized for the State of Florida and shall be written on ISO standard forms or their equivalents. The Successful Vendor shall file with the University Certificates of Insurance prior to the commencement of this Agreement and shall file Certificates of Insurance evidencing the renewal of such policies at least thirty (30) days prior to the date that each applicable insurance policy is scheduled to expire. Please note that the University of Florida must be named "additional insured" on automobile and general liability policies.

General Liability Insurance— The Successful Vendor shall provide the ISO Commercial General Liability policy for general liability coverage's for limits of not less than of \$1,000,000 per occurrence. Coverage shall be maintained without interruption from date of commencement of work until date of final payment.

Worker's Compensation- The Successful Vendor shall secure and maintain for the life of this Agreement, valid Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by Chapter 440, Florida Statutes (if applicable.)

Automobile Liability- The Successful Vendor shall secure and maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Automobile Liability insurance on all vehicles against bodily injury and property damage in at least the amount of \$100,000.00 per person, \$500,000.00 per occurrence.

- 11. **AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS** The State of Florida's and the University's performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Legislature of the State of Florida.
- 12. **PRICE INCREASES** Price changes will normally only be considered at the end of one Agreement period and the beginning of another. Price change requests shall be in writing, submitted at least 60 days prior to the end of the current Agreement period, and shall be supported by written evidence of increased costs. The University will not approve unsupported price increases that will merely increase the gross profitability of the Vendor at the expense of the University. Price change requests shall be a factor in the Agreement extension review

- process. The University shall, in its sole opinion, determine whether the requested price increase or an alternate option is in the best interest of the University.
- 13. **OTHER PURCHASERS** With the consent and agreement of the successful bidder(s) purchases may be made under this ITB by other state universities, community colleges, district school boards, other educational institutions, and other governmental agencies within the state of Florida. Such purchases shall be governed by the same terms and conditions stated in the proposal solicitation as provided in Rule 6C1-3.020 (5)(f) 3 Fla. Admin. Code.
- 14. **PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME** A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list by the Department of Management Services, State of Florida, may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services, including construction, repairs, or leases and may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant for the University of Florida for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list, a "person" or "affiliate" includes any natural person or any entity, including predecessor or successor entities or any entity under the control of any natural person who is active in its management and who has been convicted of a public entity crime (Section 287.133 Florida Statutes).
- 15. **FEDERAL DEBARRMENT** By signing this bid/proposal, the offeror certifies, to the best of its knowledge or belief, that the offeror and its principals are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency; or have not within a three-year period preceding this offer, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them in connection with a public contract or subcontract; or are not criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity with commission of offenses; or has not within a three year period preceding this offer had a contract terminated for default by any Federal agency. (Federal Acquisition Regulation 52.209-5).
- 16. **DISCRIMINATION** An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not award or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor or consultant under contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity.
- 17. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY University of Florida is an equal opportunity employer and federal contractor or subcontractor. Consequently, the parties agree that, as applicable, they will abide by the requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 41 CFR 60-300.5(a) and 41 CFR 60-741.5(a) and that these laws are incorporated herein by reference. These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin. These regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, protected veteran status, or physical or mental disability. The parties also agree that, as applicable, they will abide by the requirements of Executive Order 13496 (29 CFR Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A), relating to the notice of employee rights under federal labor laws. This contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), (or for construction contractors, 41 CFR § 60-4.3(a)), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a), and Executive Order 11246, as amended. These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Moreover, these

- regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to the aforementioned protected groups.
- 18. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT If special accommodations are needed in order to attend a pre-proposal meeting or a proposal opening, contact 352-392-1331 or email at procurement@ufl.edu, three business days prior to bid opening.
- 19. **CONFLICT OF INTEREST**: The award hereunder is subject to the provisions of Chapter 112, F.S. All suppliers must disclose with their bid the name of any officer, director, or agent who is also an employee of the University of Florida. Further, all suppliers must disclose the name of any University employee who owns, directly or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the supplier's firm or any of its branches.
- 20. **CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT** a drug-free workplace program in accordance with the requirements of Section 440.102, Florida Statutes.
- 21.**OSHA REGULATIONS** It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that all OSHA regulations applying to the project are adhered to at all times.
- 22. **NOTICE TO CONTRACTOR**: The University shall consider the employment by any contractor of unauthorized aliens a violation of section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. Such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this contract.
- 23. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE Agency is obligated to comply with the provisions of Section 448.095, Fla. Stat., "Employment Eligibility." Compliance with Section 448.095, Fla. Stat., includes, but is not limited to, utilization of the E-Verify System to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. Supplier affirms and represents that it is registered with the E-Verify system and are using same and will continue to use same as required by Section 448.095, Fla. Statute.
- 24. **TOBACCO-FREE CAMPUS POLICY** The University of Florida is a tobacco free campus. The use of cigarettes, electronic cigarettes or other tobacco products on UF campus, including in parking lots and vehicles, is not permitted and in violation of UF policy 6C1-2.022. The successful vendor(s) is/are expected to respect this tobacco free policy and fully comply with it.
- 25. **OPEN COMPETITION** The University encourages free and open competition among vendors. Whenever possible, specifications and proposal terms and conditions are designed to accomplish the objective, consistent with the necessity to satisfy the University's needs and the accomplishment of a sound economical operation. The vendor's signature on the proposal guarantees that the prices quoted have been established without collusion with other vendors and without effort to preclude the University from obtaining the lowest possible competitive price. The vendor certifies that its officers or employees have not bribed or attempted to bribe or influence in any way on officer, employee or agent of the University.
- 26. **USE OF TERMS** The terms University of Florida, University, and UF, are used synonymously in this Invitation to Bid unless otherwise indicated. The terms vendor, proposer, bidder, builder and contractor are used synonymously in this ITB unless otherwise indicated.
- 27. **ITB INTERPRETATION** Interpretation of the wording of this document will be the responsibility of the University and that interpretation will be final and binding.
- 28. **SUBCONTRACTORS** Vendor will not subcontract all or any portion of painting services without the University's written consent. If the University approves subcontracting by vendor,

performance by vendor's subcontractors will be deemed to be performance by vendor, and vendor will be responsible for ensuring that all such performance complies with the provisions of this Agreement.

29. **INVOICES** – All invoices will need to contain either a UF purchase order number or the 8-digit department ID number of the department with which you are doing business. All invoices for payment should be submitted to the University of Florida via:

Email: ufl.invoices@trustflowds.com or by

Fax: 570-496-5411 or by

Mail: University of Florida Attn: Accounts Payable

PO Box 3357

Scranton, PA 18505

#### 30. RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Other documents affecting the work include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:
  - General Terms and Conditions https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/forms/contracts/GTC.pdf
  - 2. Division 0 Non-Technical Specifications https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/forms/contracts/Div0NonTechSpecs.pdf
  - Division 1 Non-Technical Specifications
     <a href="https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/forms/contracts/Div1 NonTech Specs SEPT 2020.pdf">https://facilities.ufl.edu/wp-content/uploads/forms/contracts/Div1 NonTech Specs SEPT 2020.pdf</a>
  - 4. UF Design and Construction Standards <a href="https://facilities.ufl.edu/projects/forms-standards/design-construction-standards/">https://facilities.ufl.edu/projects/forms-standards/design-construction-standards/</a>
  - 5. Standards, Policies, Regulations, Forms, Guides, Inspection & Closeout and References https://facilities.ufl.edu/projects/forms-standards/
    - a. Other Forms:
      - Dig Permits: <a href="https://www.facilitiesservices.ufl.edu/departments/utilities/dig-permits/">https://www.facilitiesservices.ufl.edu/departments/utilities/dig-permits/</a>
      - Building Codes Enforcement Inspections: <a href="https://www.ehs.ufl.edu/departments/facility-support-services/building-codes-enforcement/inspections/">https://www.ehs.ufl.edu/departments/facility-support-services/building-codes-enforcement/inspections/</a>
      - Fire Plan Review and Inspection: <a href="https://www.ehs.ufl.edu/departments/facility-support-services/fire-safety/">https://www.ehs.ufl.edu/departments/facility-support-services/fire-safety/</a>

**END OF SECTION** 

# <u>ATTACHMENT A - REQUIREMENTS FOR FEMA PUBLIC ASSISTANCE PROGRAM PROCUREMENT</u>

The terms of this section are considered part of this solicitation and are applicable for projects/work that may be reimbursed through the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Public Assistant Program. In the event of a conflict in terms, the terms of this section will control.

#### 1. Termination.

- a. Termination for Convenience. The Agreement may be terminated by UF without cause upon no less than thirty (30) days written notice.
- b. Termination for Cause. Each term and condition of the Agreement is material and any breach or default by either party in the performance of each such term and condition will be a material breach or default of the Agreement. Either party may terminate the Agreement in the event the other party materially breaches or defaults in the performance of any of its obligations hereunder, and such default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof is provided to the breaching party by the non-breaching party. Any termination will become effective at the end of such thirty (30) day period unless the breaching party cures any such breach or default prior to the expiration of such period.
- c. Administration of Termination. All written notices must be delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested, or in person with proof of delivery. In case of termination under the Agreement, only fees for Services rendered by the Vendor through the date of termination, if any, will be due and payable, and all work in progress will become property of UF and will be turned over promptly by the Vendor. Upon receipt of written notice of termination, up until the date of termination, the Vendor will make reasonable efforts to limit the incursion of additional fees and perform only those Services necessary for the timely delivery of work in progress to UF and/or to correct a material breach or default, as applicable. The Parties will not be relieved of the duty to perform their obligations up to and including the date of termination. A termination penalty may not be charged against UF.
- 2. <u>Equal Opportunity</u>. If the Services provided under the Agreement include construction, then the Vendor agrees as follows:
  - a. The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Vendor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Vendor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
  - b. The Vendor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Vendor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
  - c. The Vendor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Vendor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
  - d. The Vendor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
  - e. The Vendor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the

- administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- f. In the event of the Vendor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of the Agreement or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, the Agreement may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Vendor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- g. The Vendor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (a) and the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Vendor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event Vendor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction by the administering agency the Vendor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- 3. <u>Davis-Bacon Act</u>. If the Agreement NOT TO EXCEED amount is in excess of Two Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$2,000.00) and Services include construction, then the Vendor must comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3144 and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 5 (Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction).
- 4. <u>Compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act</u>. If the Agreement NOT TO EXCEED amount is in excess of Two Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$2,000.00) and Services include construction, then the Vendor agrees as follows:
  - a. Contractor. The Vendor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.P.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into the Agreement.
  - b. Subcontracts. The Vendor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The Vendor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.
  - c. Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the Agreement, and for debarment of Vendor and/or subcontractor(s), if any, as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.
- 5. Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. If the Agreement NOT TO EXCEED amount is in excess of One Hundred Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$100,000.00) and Vendor employs mechanics or laborers, then Vendor agrees as follows:
  - a. Overtime Requirements. The Vendor and their subcontractor(s), if any, providing Services under the Agreement which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics will not require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-halftimes (1 ½) the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in such workweek.
  - b. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section the Vendor and their subcontractor(s), if any, responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Vendor and their

- subcontractor(s), if any, shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section.
- c. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages. FEMA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Vendor and/or subcontractor(s), if any, under any such contract or any other Federal contract with UF, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by UF, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of Vendor and/or subcontractor(s), if any, for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b) of this section.
- d. Subcontracts. The Vendor and subcontractor(s), if any, shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (a) through (c) of this section and a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The Vendor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this section.
- 6. <u>Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act</u>. If the Agreement NOT TO EXCEED amount is in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$150,000.00), then the Vendor agrees as follows:
  - a. Clean Air Act.
    - i. Vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seg.
    - ii. Vendor agrees to report each violation to the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) and understands and agrees that the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) will, in tum, report each violation as required to assure notification to the (name of recipient), Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
    - iii. Vendor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.
  - b. Federal Water Pollution Control Act.
    - i. Vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.
    - ii. Vendor agrees to report each violation to UF and understands and agrees that UF will, in tum, report each violation as required to assure notification to Federal Emergency Management Agency and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
    - iii. Vendor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding One Hundred Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$100,000) financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.
- 7. Energy Policy and Conservation. Vendor will comply with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 94-163; 42 U.S.C. § 6201-6422), and Florida's State Energy Management Plan adopted pursuant to § 255.257, F.S.
- 8. Suspension and Debarment.
  - a. If the Agreement is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, then the Vendor hereby certifies that neither the Vendor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), nor its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

- b. The Vendor must comply with 2 C.P.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.P.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transactions with subcontractors and/or suppliers.
- c. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by UF. If it is later determined that the Vendor did not comply with 2 C.P.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida and UF, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.
- d. The Vendor agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.P.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C throughout the period of the Agreement. The Vendor further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions with subcontractor and/or suppliers.
- 9. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. If the Agreement NOT TO EXCEED amount is One Hundred Thousand & 00/100 Dollars (\$100,000) or more, then Vendor shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

#### 10. Procurement of Recovered/Recycled Materials.

- a. In the performance of the Agreement, Vendor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA designated items unless the product cannot be acquired:
  - i. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
  - ii. Meeting contract performance requirements; or,
  - iii. At a reasonable price.

Information about this requirement is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines website, <a href="https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program">https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program</a>. The list of EPA-designate items is available at <a href="https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program#products">https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program#products</a>.

**END OF SECTION** 

#### **Exhibit 2: Work Order (Sample)**

## WORK ORDER, NOTICE TO PROCEED

WORK ORDER NO:
BILLING/INVOICE REFERENCE NO.:
PROJECT NUMBER:
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
County: Alachua County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida.  Date Issued:
CONTRACTOR: CONTRACTOR'S ADDRESS:
Execution of the Work Order by County shall serve as authorization for the Contractor to provide for the above project, set out in the certain Agreement of between the County and the Contractor and
further delineated in the specifications, conditions, and requirements stated in the following listed documents which are attached hereto and made a part hereof.  ATTACHMENTS:  [ ] drawings/plans/specifications [ ] scope of services [ ] special conditions
The Contractor shall provide said services pursuant to this Work Order, its attachments and the above-referenced Agreement, which is incorporated herein by reference as if it had been set out in its entirety. Whenever the Work Order conflicts with said Agreement, the Agreement shall prevail.
TIME FOR COMPLETION: The Work authorized by this Work Order shall be commenced upon the date written above or upon issuance of and shall substantially complete within () calendar days of this Work Order with Final Completion occurring () calendar days after Substantial Completion.
METHOD OF COMPENSATION:  (a) This Work Order is issued on a fixed fee basis
(b) The Contractor shall perform all work required by this Work Order for the sum of DOLLARS (\$). In no event shall the Contractor be
paid more than the Fixed Fee Amount.
The County shall make payment to the Contractor in strict accordance with the payment terms of the above-referenced Agreement.  It is expressly understood by the Contractor that this Work Order, until executed by the County, does not authorize the performance of any Services by the Contractor and that the

Page 9 of 15

that to do so is in the best interest of the County.

County, prior to its execution of the Work Order, reserves the right to authorize a party other than the Contractor to perform the Services called for under this Work Order if it is determined

IN W	ITNESS WHEREO	F, the Parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order
on this	day of	, 20, for the purposes stated herein.
WORK C	ORDER NO:	
		CONTRACTOR
		CONTRACTOR:
		By:
Witness		By: Signature
		Printed Name:
		Title:
		Date:
		ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA:
		By:
		Printed Name:
		Title:
		Date:

## **Exhibit 2A: Work Order Amendment (Sample)**

AMENDMENT #				
NTP/Project #	<del></del>			
Data Issued:				
Professional:				
Invoicing Reference #				
Contract Manager:				
Project #:				
Work Order Description:				
Deliverable(s):				
Original Work Order Price:				
Total of Duian American Changes				
Total of Prior Approved Changes				
Amount of this Change in Work Order	r			
Add or (deduct)				
New Work Order Price with This	S			
Amendment:				
Original Completion Date:		(	days after	issuance of
this Work Order)				issualice of
New Completion Date:		(	davs after	issuance of
this Work Order)			, :	
Not valid until signed by County				
ALACHUA COUNTY:	<b>CONTRACTOR:</b>			
By:	By:			
Title:	Print Name:			
Date:	Title:			
	Date:			

## **Exhibit 3: Pricing Schedule**

FY24-ITB-017 Campus Painting and Pressurewashing Services

1124 II b 017 Campus I ameni	g and Pressurewashing Services
	Natural Elements Painting & Repair
PAINTING REGULAR TIME	
Project Manager/Supervisor	
(Regular Time)	\$70.00
Painter (Regular Time)	\$60.00
Painter's Helper (Regular Time)	\$50.00
(negular rinie)	<del>-</del>
PAINTING OVERTIME	
Project Manager/Supervisor (Nights/Weekends)	\$100.00
Painter	
(Nights/Weekends)	\$80.00
Painter's Helper	
(Nights/Weekends)	\$65.00
PRESSURE WASHING REGULAR TIME	
Project Manager/Supervisor (Regular Time)	\$70.00
Pressure/Power Washing Technician (Regular Time)	\$55.00
Pressure/Power Washing Helper (Regular Time)	\$50.00
PRESSURE WASHING OVERTIME	
Project Manager/Supervisor (Nights/Weekends)	\$100.00
Pressure/Power Washing Technician (Nights/Weekends)	\$75.00
Pressure/Power Washing Helper	
(Nights/Weekends)	\$65.00
	Alachua, Marion, Columbia, Union,
	Bradford, Gilchrist, Levy, and Putnam.
Service Areas	For larger projects, we can work in the Orlando, Tampa, and Jacksonville areas.
Set vice / treas	2 rampa, and racksoft me areas.

#### **Exhibit 4: Insurance**

## TYPE "A" INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS "ARTISAN CONTRACTORS / SERVICE CONTACTS"

The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the contractor/vendor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

## **COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY**

Coverage must be afforded under a per occurrence form policy for limits not less than \$1,000,000 General Aggregate, \$1,000,000 Products / Completed Operations Aggregate, \$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury Liability, \$1,000,000 each Occurrence, \$50,000 Fire Damage Liability and \$5,000 Medical Expense.

#### **AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY**

Coverage must be afforded including coverage for all Owned vehicles, Hired and Non-Owned vehicles for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of not less than \$1,000,000 combined single limit each accident.

## WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY

Coverage to apply for all employees at STATUTORY Limits in compliance with applicable state and federal laws; if any operations are to be undertaken on or about navigable waters, coverage must be included for the USA Longshoremen & Harbor Workers Act.

Employer's Liability limits for not less than \$100,000 each accident; \$500,000 disease policy limit and \$100,000 disease each employee must be included.

#### **BUILDER'S RISK / INSTALLATION FLOATERS (when applicable)**

When this contract or agreement includes the construction of and/or the addition to a permanent structure or building; including the installation of machinery and/or equipment, the following insurance coverage must be afforded:

Coverage Form: Completed Value, All Risk in an amount equal to 100% of the value upon completion or value of equipment to be installed.

When applicable: Waiver of Occupancy Clause or Cessation of Insurance clause. Flood Insurance as available under the

National Flood Insurance Program.

## **CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGE (when applicable)**

Vendor shall procure and maintain for the life of the contract in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per loss for negligent retention of data as well as notification and related costs for actual or alleged breaches of data.

<u>Technology/Professional Liability</u>: with limits of \$1 million. Coverage is for the life of the contract and must continue for five (5) years after contract expiration. This coverage must include Cyber Liability coverage for negligent retention of data as well as notification and related costs for actual or alleged breaches of data.

# EMPLOYEE FIDELITY COVERAGE (only applicable to vendors whose employees handle funds)

Employee Dishonesty coverage must be afforded for not less than \$500,000 Blanket all employees ISO Form

#### OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

#### I Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

- a. The Alachua County Board of County Commissioners, its officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as an Additional Insured as respects: Liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Contractor/Vendor; to include Products and/or Completed Operations of the Contractor/Vendor; Automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor.
- b. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be considered primary insurance as respects the County, its officials, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of Contractor/Vendor's insurance and shall be non-contributory.

#### **II** All Coverages

The Contractor/Vendor shall provide a Certificate of Insurance to the County with a notice of cancellation. The certificate shall indicate if cover is provided under a "claims made" or "per occurrence" form. If any cover is provided under claims made from the certificate will show a retroactive date, which should be the same date of the contract (original if contact is renewed) or prior.

## **SUBCONTRACTORS**

The Contractor/Vendor shall be responsible for all subcontractors working on their behalf as a condition of this agreement. All subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor shall be subject to the same coverage requirements stated herein.

**CERTIFICATE HOLDER: Alachua County Board of County Commissioners** 

MAIL, EMAIL or FAX CERTIFICATES

## **Exhibit 4-A: Certificate of Insurance**